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REGULATION & INTRODUCTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR
GREATER MANCHESTER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE DEPUTY MAYOR FOR POLICING
AND CRIME FOR GREATER MANCHESTER IN RESPECT OF THE POLICE AND
CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR GREATER MANCHESTER

We have audited the financial statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner for
Greater Manchester (the "Police and Crime Commissioner") for the period ended 7
May 2017 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the "Act"). The financial
statements comprise the Police and Crime Commissioner Movement in Reserves
Statement, the Police and Crime Commissioner Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, the Police and Crime Commissioner Balance Sheet, the
Police and Crime Commissioner Cash Flow Statement, the Police and Crime
Commissioner Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the related notes, the Group
Movement in Reserves Statement, the Group Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, the Group Balance Sheet, the Group Cash Flow Statement,
the Group Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the related notes, and include the
police pension fund financial statements of Greater Manchester Police comprising
the Police Pension Fund Account and the related notes 1 to 10. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2016/17.

This report is made solely to the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime for Greater
Manchester in respect of the Police and Crime Commissioner, as a body, in
accordance with Part 5 of the Act and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit
Appeointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime for Greater Manchester those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditor's report in respect of the Police and Crime
Commissioner and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Deputy Mayor for
Policing and Crime for Greater Manchester in respect of the Police and Crime
Commissioner as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Treasurer of GMCA and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of
Accounts, the Treasurer of GMCA is responsible for the preparation of the Statement
of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper
practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17, which give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law, the Code of Audit Practice published by the National
Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the “Code of Audit
Practice”) and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for
Auditors.



Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Police and Crime Commissioner and Group's circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Treasurer of GMCA; and the overall presentation
of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the Treasurer’'s Narrative Report and the Annual Governance
Statement to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements
and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion:

e the financial statements present a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Police and Crime Commissioner and Group as at 7 May 2017 and of
the Police and Crime Commissioner's and Group's expenditure and income
for the period then ended; and

« the financial statements have been prepared properly in accordance with the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2016/17 and applicable law.

Emphasis of Matter — Basis of Preparation — Going Concern

In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not modified, we have
considered the adequacy of the disclosures made in notes 2 and 32 to the financial
statements and in the Treasurer’'s Narrative Report concerning the basis of
preparation of the financial statements. As explained in Note 2:

The functions of the Greater Manchester Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC),
were transferred by Parliamentary Order to the Elected Mayor of Greater Manchester
with effect from 8 May 2017. The transfer of PCC functions to the Elected Mayor
means that the legal entity known as Greater Manchester Police and Crime
Commissioner ceased to exist as of 8 May 2017. All properties, rights and liabilities
(including contracts of employment) transferred to the Greater Manchester Combined
Authority on 8 May 2017, As the functions of PCC will continue, and in accordance
with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2016/17, the accounts have been prepared on a going concern
basis.

Opinion on other matters

In our opinion, the other information published together with the audited financial
statements in the Treasurer's Narrative Report and the Annual Governance
Statement for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the audited financial statements.



Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We are required to report to you if*

s in our opinion the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the
guidance included in ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government:
Framework (2016)' published by CIPFA and SOLACE; or

« we have reported a matter in the public interest under section 24 of the Act in
the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

 we have made a written recommendation to the Police and Crime
Commissioner under section 24 of the Act in the course of, or at the
conclusion of the audit; or

* we have exercised any other special powers of the auditor under the Act.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Conclusion on the Police and Crime Commissioner’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Respective responsibilities of the Police and Crime Commissioner and auditor

The Police and Crime Commissioner is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the
adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

We are required under Section 20(1){c) of the Act to be satisfied that the Police and
Crime Commissioner has made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider,
nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Police and Crime
Commissioner's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources are operating effectively.

Scope of the review of the Police and Crime Commissioner's arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice,
having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria issued by the Comptroller and
Auditor General in November 2016, as to whether the Police and Crime
Commissioner had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for
taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this
criteria as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in
satisfying ourselves whether the Police and Crime Commissioner put in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the period ended 7 May 2017.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our
risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a
view on whether in all significant respects the Police and Crime Commissioner has
put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources.



Conclusion

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria
issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2016, we are satisfied
that in all significant respects the Police and Crime Commissioner put in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the period ended 7 May 2017.

Delay in certification of completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate in accordance
with the requirements of the Act and the Code of Audit Practice until we have
completed the work necessary in respect of our Whole of Government Accounts
(WGA) Component Assurance statement for the Police and Crime Commissioner
and the Chief Constable for Greater Manchester for the period ended 7 March 2017.
We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the financial
statements or on our conclusion on the Police and Crime Commissioner's
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the period ended 7 May 2017.

Pat Grady

Paul Grady
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor

30 Finsbury Square
London
EC2P 2YU

29 September 2017



TREASURER’S NARRATIVE REPORT
1. Introduction

The purpose of this report is to offer an easily understandable guide to the most important matters reported in the accounts.
However, should you wish to review a simpler summary of accounts which highlights the main points of interest, (rather than
the full detailed version contained in this document} a copy of the summary of accounts and further information about the
Mayoral Police and Crime Commissioning functions can be obtained by visiting https://www.greatermanchester-
ca.gov.uk/info/20006/police_and_crime

As highlighted in last year’'s foreword the functions of the Greater Manchester Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC), in Greater
Manchester, were transferred by Parliamentary Order®, to the elected Mayor of Greater Manchester with effect from 8" May
2017. Under Section 2 of the Order “the mavyor is to be treated, in relation to the mayor's PCC functions, as a police and crime
commissioner for the purposes of all police and crime commissioner enactments, wherever passed or made, subject to schedule
1 of the Order”. The transfer of the PCC functions to the Elected Mayor means that the legal entity known as the Greater
Manchester Police and Crime Commissioner ceased to exist as of 8 May 2017. All properties, rights and liabilities {including
contracts of employment) transferred to the Greater Manchester Combined Authority an 8 May 2017. Under the Order, all
functions and decisions relating to such properties, rights and liabilities are to be exercised and made by the Mayor. Any receipts
arising from such properties, rights and liabilities are to be paid into the police fund kept by the mayor by virtue of section 21 of
the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. As the functions of the PCC will continue the accounts have been prepared
on a going concern basis.

The requirement in section 3(3) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014(a) for a relevant authority to prepare a statement
of accounts for each financial year ending on 31% March is modified under section 9 of the Order whereby in the case of the
Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable for the financial year which began on 1st April 2016 to require {(a} the

Police and Crime Commissioner, or after the transfer made by this Order, the combined authority in respect of the Police and
Crime Commissioner's accounts; and (b} the Chief Constable; to prepare a statement of accounts from that date for the period
which ends on 7th May 2017. Details of the assumptions made in preparing these accounts for this extended peried can be
found in the critical judgements section of the Statement of Accounts. :

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting 2016/17 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2016/17. The cbjectives of the Statement of Accounts
are to provide information about the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Police and Crime
Commissioner that are useful to a wide range of users. The information provided also allows for an assessment to be made of
the stewardship and accountability of the Commissioner and the management of the resources entrusted to him. As required by
the above, the accounts are necessarily extremely detailed and technical and explanatory notes are included.

This foreword is divided into the following main areas:

s The Police and Crime Commissioner for Greater Manchester
s  Greater Manchester context

» Changes in statutory functions

s Relationship between the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable
Details of changes to the statements for 2016/17

Details of what is included in the statement of accounts
Review of 2016/17, including performance

Outlook for the future

Statement on the pension liability

Staterment on provisions

Statement on the impact of the Private Finance Initiative
Analysis of borrowing

Impact of the current econemic climate

Material assets acquired and liabilities incurred

Material and unusual charges

a & & ¢ & B

1 The Greater Manchester Combined Authority {Transfer of Police and Crime Commissioner Functions to the Mayor) Order 2017
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The Police and Crime Commissioner for Greater Manchester

The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 established the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable as
separate corporation soles. The core functions of Police and Crime Commissioners are to secure the maintenance of an efficient
and effective police force within their area, and to hold the Chief Constable to account for the delivery of the police and crime
plan. Police and Crime Commissioners are charged with holding the police fund (from which all policing of the area is financed)
and raising the local policing precept from council tax. Police and Crime Commissioners are also responsible for the
appointment, suspension and dismissal of the Chief Canstable.

As set out above from 8™ May 2017 the mayor is to be treated, in relation to the mayor’s PCC functions, as a police
and crime commissioner for the purposes of all police and crime commissioner enactments.

Greater Manchester context

The statistics below highlight the challenges to policing services but also the opportunities upon which resilient communities can
be built to make Greater Manchester a safer place to live, whilst protecting the vulnerable and supporting victims of crime.

e Greater Manchester has a population of 2.5 million, encompassing one of the largest metropolitan areas, the second
most populous urban area in the UX. There is a mix of high-density urban areas, suburbs, semi-rural and rural locations
in Greater Manchester, but mostly urban

e There are 1.4 million people working in Greater Manchester in over 100,000 businesses. Greater Manchester has the
largest travel-to-work area of any conurbation in the UK outside of London

e Manchester is the UK's third most popular city for international visits, after London and Edinburgh with the number of
visitors rising from 1.15 million in 2015 to 1.19 million in 2016

¢  Manchester Airport handles nearly 22 million passengers per year and offers direct flights to over 200 destinations
worldwide

e With around 96,000 students studying in Greater Manchester it is one of the largest student populations in Europe

e Greater Manchester is the third most deprived Local Enterprise Partnership in the country with over a quarter of all
children living in poverty

¢ Recent research by Manchester University — ‘Multilingual Manchester’ — has identified over 150 languages as being
spoken across the city region? reiterating the extent of GM's multi-culturalism

The Index of Demand records that Greater Manchester is the most challenging area for policing in England and Wales. Greater
Manchester is significantly higher in the Index than the Metropolitan Police area.

2. Relationship between the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable
Each has specific roles and responsibilities under legislation.

The Police and Crime Commissioner:
= Appoints the Chief Constable and may suspend him or require him to resign or retire
¢ Must maintain the Police Force and ensure that it is efficient and effective
s Mustissue a Police and Crime Plan
e  Must hold the Chief Constable to account for his actions and those of his officers and staff
» Receives all income from grants, precept and charges

The Chief Constable:
e Holds office as a servant of the crown and is not an employee
e Has direction and control over police officers and is the employer of paolice staff
» |s operationally independent
e Must have regard to the Commissioners Police and Crime Plan
s Holds no property, rights or liabilities
e  May not borrow money
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3. Changes to the statements for 2016/17
The following changes have been introduced by the Code of Practice for 2016/17;

¢ Presentation changes to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the Movement in Reserves. This
new presentation of information, with prior year comparison figures restated for reader information, is in line with
CIPFA guidance and is commensurate with the in-year internal reporting to management of income and expenditure

e The introduction of the Expenditure and Funding analysis. The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to
demonstrate to tax payers how the funding available to the PCC (i.e. government grants, precepts), for the year has
been used in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by the PCC in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices.

4. What's in the Statements of Accounts?

The accounts are prepared using International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS).These are the same standards that a large
company would use in preparing its financial statements. Some adjustments relating to costs that are not a charge to local
taxpayers can be made by the Commissioner.

This document contains two sets of accounts; the Police and Crime Commissioner Single Entity accounts and the Police and
Crime Commissioner Group which incorporates the accounts produced by the Chief Constable,

Single Entity Statements

a. These comprise:
« Movement in Reserves Statement {MiRS)
¢ Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
e Balance Sheet
¢ Cash Flow Statement
¢ Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The contents of these statements is explained in the group statements section below.

Group Statements

b. Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
This sets out the different responsibilities that the Police and Crime Commissioner and his Chief Finance Officer have for the
content, production and approval of the accounts.

€. Movement in Reserves Statement {MIRS) - This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves
held by the Palice and Crime Commissioner. It shows how the deficit for the year in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is adjusted by the costs that are not a charge to local taxpayers. The entry in respect of the General Fund shows an
increase of £0.205m in the balance to £13.221m.

d. Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement {CIES) - This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of
providing services under IFRS. The net deficit on the provision of services for the year is £144.326m, which is adjusted in the
MIRS to give the true cost to the local taxpayer.

e. Balance Sheet {BS) - The balance sheet shows that the Police and Crime Commissioner recognised net liabilities of
£7,415.838m at the end of the year. Assets are £416.165m and liabilities £7,832.003m, including a pension’s liability of
£7,565.676m.

f. Cash Flow Statement - This statement shows that cash and cash equivalents held by the Police and Crime Commissioner
at the end of the year increased by £11.368m.

g- Expenditure and Funding Analysis - This analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from rescurces
(government grants and precept) by the PCC in comparison with those resources consumed or earned in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices.
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h. Statement of Accounting Policies - Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices
applied by the Police and Crime Commissioner in preparing and presenting his financial statements. The Police and Crime
Commissioner and the Chief Constable share the same accounting policies.

i Notes to the Financial Statements - These include information required by the Code and additional material items of
interest to assist the readers understanding of the reported figures.

I Events after the reporting period and authorised for issue date - This summarises any major events that happened
between the year end and the authorised for issue date. Events coming to light after the autharised for issue date will not be
included in the financial statements.

k. Police Pension Fund Account - The Police Pensions scheme is unfunded and holds no assets. The purpose of this account
is to demonstrate the cash-based transactions taking place over the year and to identify the arrangements needed to balance
the account.

I Annual Governance Statement - This statement explains how the Police and Crime Commissioner complied with his Code
of Corporate Governance. Preparation and publication of the Statement fulfils his statutory requirement under the Accounts
and Audit Regulations 2015 to conduct a review at least once in each financial year of the effectiveness of his system of internal
control and to include a statement reporting on the review with his Statement of Accounts.

m.  Glossary of financial terms - The nature of this document means that technical words are unavoidable. The glossary is
intended to simplify and explain such words.

5. Review of 2016/17

a) Revenue budget

The government provided the majority (80%) of the money required to fund the Police and Crime Commissioner’s expenditure.
The remainder (20%) was paid by local taxpayers through the Precept (police portion of Council tax). This means that cuts to the
police grant have a greater impact in Greater Manchester when compared to other force areas where the reliance on
government funding is as low as 47%.

The police grant was cut by 0.6% and coupled with unavoidable pressures this equated to the delivery of savings totalling
£29.6m. This is in addition to the £185m which has already been cut since austerity began in 2010, resulting in the loss of 2,000
police officers and 1,000 police staff.

The budget is set in February each year in the context of the 4 year Strategic Financial Outlook (SFO). The 2016/17 budget was
approved on 16" February 2016 by the Police and Crime Commissioner and can be found here

https://meetings.gmpcc.org.uk/documents/s10856/Budget%20report%201617%20Issued.pdf

The Band D Precept set was £157.30 {(£152.30 the previous year), an increase of 3.28%, the 9™ lowest precept in England and
Wales.

b) Monitoring

Rigorous budgetary control arrangements are is in place together with a devolved system of budgetary control, which ensured
resources were allocated to priorities as required. Monthly control reports on budgetary performance for the group are
considered. The group outturn against the original budget set is as follows:
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Group Z016/17 to 7th May 2017
Budget Actual Variance
£000 £000

Police Officer Pay 367,160 363,711 3,449
Police Officer Related 4,312 4,023 289
Staff Pay 137,613 136,813 795
Police Staff Related 2,107 2,797 {690)
PCS0 Pay 25,336 24,011 1,325
PCSO Related 6. 8 2)
Police Officer Overtime 13,655 17,816 {4,161)
Police Staff Overtime 1,791 2,453 {662)
PCSO Overtime 29 101 {72)
TOTAL EMPLOYEE RELATED 552,009 551,738 271
Pensions 118,966 127,911 (8,945)
Premises Related 33,510 33,470 40
Supplies & Services 60,519 53,436 7,083
Agency Payments 26,500 24,804 1,696
Transport Related 6,929 6,650 239
Capital Financing 12,340 11,714 626
Transfer ta/from Reserves (2,828} 12,156 | ({15,024)
Specific Grants {168,516} | {177,268} 8,752
Income & Sponsorship (37,046) | (42,413} 5,367
OTHER EXPENDITURE 50,374 50,540 (166)
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 602,383 | 602,278 105
Funded By:
Home Office Grant/RSG/NNDR | (478,577} | (478,577) 0
Precept/ CT Surplus (123,806} | (123,806} (1]
FUNDING (602,383} | (602,383} (1]
Over / (Underspend) 0 {105} 105

The table shows that the General Fund balance at 7" May 2017 will be £0.105m more than the previous year.

The Group Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement shows a deficit on the provision of services of £144.326m. Thisis
because that Statement includes not only the income and expenditure shown in the table above but additionally includes all
sums for which the Police and Crime Commissioner is responsible under International Financial Reporting Standards, for
example I1AS 19 pension costs, capital accounting and accounting for financial instruments. The two figures are reconciled in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

c) General Fund Balance at 7th May 2017

The Police and Crime Commissioner’s balances strategy was to set a target level for the General Fund annually based on an
assessment of the key financial risks facing him. This assessment showed that the medium term balance should be between
£11.784m and £14.564m. The final Genera)l Fund balance is £13.221m which means the balance is within recommended limits.

The budget for 2017/18 does not rely on a contribution from General Fund to balance. There are no current plans to withdraw
from General Fund during the current SFO period.

d) Capital
In addition to revenue expenditure, money is spent on assets such as buildings, computers and vehicles, which will be used by or
on behalf of the Police and Crime Commissioner in the long term. Capital expenditure can be financed from:

. Unsupported (or prudential) borrowing, which does not attract government support. The Police and Crime
Commissioner decides how much to borrow based on what is affordable, prudent and sustainable within the
meaning of the Prudential Code
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. Capital grants
. Usable capital receipts arising from the sale of surplus assets
. Amounts set aside from the revenue account

In 2016/17 the Police and Crime Commissioner spent £29.232m on capital projects {£16.652m in 2015/16). The categories of
expenditure and methods of financing are shown in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. The sources of funding

during the year were:

2016/17 2015/16

to 7th May

2017
£000 £000
Capital Grants 4,418 4,859
Capital receipts (sale of surplus assets) 4,027 5,293
Funded from revenue account 4,300 6,500
Unsupported borrowing 16,487 0
29,232 16,652

The major schemes completed in the year were:

» |5 Transformation Project — Integration at a cost of £3.660m
s C(Case, Custody and Property System at a cost of £1.238m

The majority of the rest of the spend has been classed as Assets Under Construction as part of the major IT Transformation
Scheme.

in 2016/17 the Police and Crime Commissioner disposed of assets worth £0.973m (£2.249m in 2015/16).

e} Performance

Details of the performance against the Police and Crime Plan can be found at www.gmpcc.org.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2017/03/PCC-END-OF-TERM-REVIEW-WEBONLY-5.pdf , however listed below are a selection of projects which

the Police and Crime Commissioner has led and invested in to support the most vulnerable in our community, particularly
relevant as ¢.80% of police demand being classified as non-crime and therefore it is critical that the Police and Crime Plan
focuses not only on policing but also supporting those vulnerable to crime.

Mental Health crisis care significant progress has been made in terms of both staff training and development and engagement
with the voluntary sector. In September a conference for voluntary sector and faith partners was hosted to provide an
opportunity to shape the direction of travel for mental health work and in particular how our local community assets can
support the wellbeing of communities. Furthermore in conjunction with Connect S training which provides basic awareness of
mental iliness and suicide was introduced for frontline workers.

Integrated custody healthcare and wider liaison and diversion - From 1st February 2017 a new-integrated service was
introduced in all of Greater Manchester's custody suites and the courts. This includes both healthcare provision in custody and
wider liaison and diversion support. This is a jointly funded project between the Police and Crime Commissioner and NHS
England and is the first of its kind in the country. The project seeks to prevent reoffending for some of the most vulnerable
people in our community by offering people appropriate support at the earliest point of their contact with the criminal justice
system.

Justice Develution - A ground breaking Justice Devolution deal was agreed with government and a Memorandum of
Understanding was signed with the Ministry of Justice in July 2016 to cement this waork which seeks to find opportunities to
transform services in order to reduce reoffending.

Women Offenders — Key work under this banner is the whole system approach to dealing with women offenders, recognising
that many women who end up in prison are themselves victims of crime such as domestic violence and sexual abuse. The whole
systems approach has gone from strength to strength with an award of funds from the Big Lottery for three years and a re-
offending rate of 15% which demonstrates an improvement and also compares favourably to similar metropolitan areas.
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Transforming Youth Justice - A significant programme of work has been undertaken to re-design the delivery of youth justice
services with a child-first approach and a focus on Looked After Children, which has included provision of direct safeguarding
support at Wetherby Young Offenders Institution for young people and their families from Greater Manchester.

Intensive Community Orders - This scheme diverts 500 men per year aged 18-24 from prison custody and provides intensive
support to tackle risky and offending behaviour. The results so far indicate an 18.5% reduction in frequency of offending.

Public Service Reform - £2m investment to developing new ways of joint working in Greater Manchaster neighbourhoods,
taking an evidence based place based approach.

Domestic Abuse - The roll out of the STRIVE Domestic Abuse early intervention and prevention programme has continued
through this year which tries to help people resolve issues before they escalate and has seen the creation of a network of
volunteers and the development of an innovative behaviour change programme for people in crisis.

Domestic abuse campaign — Bringing together local authorities, Greater Manchester Police, Transport for Greater Manchester,
and Independent Choices a ground-breaking awareness campaign on domestic abuse was launched. The campaign aimed to be
empowering, positive, approachable and flexible with imagery and messaging that was clear and bright as a contrast to previous
campaigns. It focussed on a bright yellow sofa, with clear messaging on domestic abuse and posing the question, “does that sit
right with you?”, reaching over a million and half people. The landing page received more than 10,000 unique visitors, and
endthefear saw a 26% uplift in visitors to their website over the course of the campaign.

Putting Victims First — since April 2015 PCCs have had the responsibility for commissioning victims services. A new integrated
and co-located referral and assessment service has been commissioned to help support vulnerable people at their time of need.
This includes the establishment of 11 victim’s services co-ordinators across Greater Manchester and an independent service
provider working hand in hand with police and partners to help victims cope and recover. This new service which will be
implemented early in the new financial year. The service will act as a ‘gateway’ for all victims of crime whether they choose to
report to the police or not.

The service will provide emotional, practical and advocacy support and will involve working closely with partners to ensure the
right agencies are supporting their needs effectively, to help them cope and recover from the impact and consequence of crime.
Furthermore, Victim Services Coordinators are being placed in each of the Greater Manchester districts to support the
development and delivery of improved services for victims and to provide a more join-up and streamlined service for victims,
across GMP and partners.

Tackling Child Sexual Exploitation — The continued support of the Phoenix peer reviews and the its Not Okay weeks of action.
This year Ann Coffey undertake a review of the Real Voice report she produced two years ago. Some of the improvements
highlighted include the police flagging systems are being much better used, which means there is much more intelligence to
work with. Quality assurance panels continue to be held and to support the review a dip sample of “NFA” {no further action
cases) were considered, Whereas in the initial Real Voices report there was some concern in terms of the rationalisation of an
NFA decision in those cases that were dip samples and where an NFA had been agreed, in the cases that were dip sampled,
there appeared to be a clear move to decision making where the interest of the child was a primary factor.

Female Genital Mutilation - Greater Manchester, through the Domestic Abuse Partnership Board has established key priorities
in terms of FGM. Following the production of the FGM prevalence report, that was commissioned by Tony Lloyd a FGM strategy
has been produced, which focussed on some key gaps. An FGM protocol for Greater Manchester has been agreed and
launched, which outlines procedures for professionals and more recently the “Guardian Project” was [aunched. This project is
intended to provide support to professionals, victims and their families where there is a risk of FGM and is the first of its kind in
the country to focus primarily on support for children and young people.

Missing Children - A Greater Manchester missing children project commenced on the 1st February 2017, which is designed to
enhance the offer of support that is currently received by children who go missing. The cohort of children who will benefit from
this project are those children who go missing between 2-5 times, as there is strong evidence to suggest that by providing early
intervention and support when a child first goes missing, reduces the likelihood of these episodes becoming a regular
occurrence. As well as reducing the vulnerability of those children within this cohort, there are also anticipated benefits for the
police in terms of demand reduction.
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Sexual Assault Referral Centre - The Police and Crime Commissioner and NHS England continue to jointly fund the Greater
Manchester Sexual Abuse Centre, which this year received an uplift in funding to address both capacity issues and also the
waiting lists for children’s therapeutic support. Investing in the paediatric service has enabled us to realise a reduction in the
waiting lists for counselling. :

Investing in our communities— £3.4m of funding has been distributed to community safety partnerships and community groups
for projects which seek tackle local priorities, for example domestic violence, anti-social behaviour, hate crime, building safe and
resilient communities,

Empowering young people —in 2016/17 £0.6m was distributed to fund over 30 initiatives to give young people across Greater
Manchester the opportunity to learn new skills and make a positive contribution to their local communities.

Hate crime —Continued to prioritise how Greater Manchester responds to hate crime. Working with organisations such as the
LGBT Foundation, CST and Tell MAMA to build resilience within communities of identity, provide support to hate crime victims,
and encourage reporting, including a Greater Manchester-wide partnership campaign during hate crime awareness week in
February 2017.

6. Outlook for the future

In the Autumn Statement the Chancellor declaration in the Autumn Statement that police spending would be protected in real
terms over the period of the spending review (2016-2020). However the settlement received on 2™ February meant that the
police grant for 2017/18 was cut in cash terms by 1.4%. For Greater Manchester this means a grant cut of £5.7m, coupled with
increasing costs savings of £44m will need to be delivered over the remaining spending review period. The savings requirement
for 2017/18 is £26m.

There are also a number of uncertainties which impact on the ability to plan for the medium term, mainly the review of the
police funding formula and the cost of the new Emergency Services Network.

The Home Office undertook a review of the police funding formula during summer 2015, however a number of issues with the
data used and concerns regarding the consultation process meant that the review was deferred. The Policing minister, Brandon
Lewis, requested a review of the formula to assess whether or not a new formula could be implemented. Work was advanced
but has been put on hold until after the General Election. This has the potential to be significant as Greater Manchester relies up
on 80% of its funding from the Police Grant.

The need to review the funding for policing has been further heightened by the recent terror attacks and pressure to both
increase resources and open a dialogue regarding the recovery of costs from such an attack.

Another material uncertainty is the cost of the Emergency Services Network. The Government is committed to replacing the
current Airwaves system, the radio system which connects blue light services. The total cost of this investment and how it will be
resourced is estimated at £1bn, nationally. The cost which will fall within the medium term budget has had to be estimated as
there is a lack of detail, nationally. Savings are expected, however they have not been quantified and are unlikely to be realised
until at least 2020.

On the basis that the level of uncertainty is high for both these projects no assumptions have been made in the current medium
term plan.

The 2017/18 revenue budget and capital programme can be found at:
https://www.gmpcc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Budget-report-17 18-final-Revised-at-Forum-2.pdf

This will be the last set of group PCC accounts. As of 8 May 2017 all expenditure, income, assets and liabilities relating to the
Police Fund will be reported within the group accounts of GMCA.

7. Pensions Liability

The Police and Crime Commissioners staff, Police staff and Police officers are offered retirement benefits as part of their terms
and conditions of employment. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, International
Accounting Standard (1AS) 19 requires that the commitment to make future payments is disclosed at the time that employees
and officers earn their future entitlement.
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The Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable participate in two pension schemes:

e  The Police Pension Scheme for police officers - this is an unfunded defined benefit scheme administered by the Chief
Constable on behaif of the Police and Crime Commissioner. There are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions
liabilities and cash has to be generated from employee and employer contributions to meet actual pensions payments as
they eventually fall due. Under the Police Pensions Fund Regulations 2007, if the amounts receivable by the pensions fund
for the year is less than amounts payable, the Police and Crime Commissioner must annually transfer an amount required
to meet the deficit to the pension fund. Subject to parliamentary scrutiny and approval, up to 100% of this cost is met by
central government pension top-up grant. If however the pensien fund is in surplus for the year, the surplus is required to
be transferred from the pension fund to the Police and Crime Commissioner, who then must repay the amount to central
government. From 2015 member benefits will be accrued based on a retirement age of 60.

e The Local Government Pension Scheme for all Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable employees,
administered locaily by Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council. This is a funded defined benefit scheme meaning that the
employers and employees pay contributions into a fund calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities
with investment assets.

¢  Within the Local Government Pension scheme two records are maintained; one for the staff employed by the Police and
Crime Commissioner and one for the staff employed by the Chief Constable.

This tAS has a significant adverse impact on the net cost of services although, as the adjustments are reversed out in the
Movement in Reserves Statement, not at the level of local taxation.

There is also a significant adverse impact on the balance sheet which shows the estimated value of the Police and Crime
Commissianer’s pension commitments should they be called now. The estimated liability is:

2016/17 2015/16

to 7' May 2017
£000 £000
Police Officers 7,339.430 5,965,170
Police Staff 221.377 197,286
PCC staff 4.869 2,868
7,565.676 6,165.324

However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Police and Crime Commissioner
remains healthy. Full 1AS 19 notes appear in the notes to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the
Balance Sheet.

8. Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gave the Police and Crime Commissioner a legal or constructive
obligation that requires settfement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. These accounts include 2 provisions. Further details are included in the notes to the Group
Financial Statements.

2016/17 2015/16

to 7t* May 2017
£000 £000
Insurance 27,348 29,077
Palice pension lump sums 201 586
Other minor provisions 0 87
27,549 29,750

9. Private Finance Initiative (PFI)

On 4™ December 2002, the former Police Authority entered into a Private Finance Initiative (PFI) scheme to provide 17 new

police facilities on 16 sites. Payments to the contractor, the unitary charge, began with the opening of the first building and
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commencement of the service in November 2003. The contractor will operate and service the stations for 25 years from the
opening of the last building, after which ownership will revert to the Police and Crime Commissioner at nil cost. The unitary
charge will be met from revenue and PFI credits (i.e. grant) awarded by the Home Office.

Financial transactions in the year have been as follows:-

2016/17 2015/16
to 7' May 2017

£000 £000

PFI grant receipts (5,758) {5,315)

Balance contributed from PFl reserve (772) {733)

Grant support {6,530} (6,048)

Unitary Charge 15,536 14,233

Penalties {360) {42)
Unitary Payment 15,176 14,191 |

The property used in the PFI contract is recognised as an asset in the balance sheet together with a related liability. The unitary
charge is split into a service element and a construction element, the service element is charged to revenue as it is incurred and
the construction element is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

The unitary payment has been split as follows " 2016/17 'Uz't'us/_lﬂ
to 7th May 2017 |
£000 £000
Penalties (360) {42)
Fair value of services 3,131 2,642
Lifecycle replacement 3,335 1,051
Contingent rent 1,805 2,429
Finance lease interest charges 6,097 5,859
Lease redemptions 1,164 2,252
Unitary Payment 15,1_76_ I _14,191

10. Borrowing

The Police and Crime Commissioner’'s power to borrow is set out in Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003, together with a
duty to determine and keep under review how much he can afford to borrow. Controls on borrowing are contained within the
CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities and, under the provisions of the 2003 Act, the Police and Crime
Commissioner had regard to the Code when carrying out his duties under the Act.

The key objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure, within a clear framework, that capital investment plans are affordable,
prudent and sustainable. A key prudential indicator is the operational boundary for external debt, which limits the amount of
long-term debt outstanding. The limit was originally set at £127.197m for 2016/17 and has not been breached.

. Borrowing is managed to ensure a reasonable spread of maturity and to minimise interest payable. At 7% May 2017 the level of
debt outstanding was as follows:-

Principal Accrued Total

interest
£000 £000 £000
Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) 73,684 948 74,632
Ex-GMC (pre 1986) debt 5,405 0 5,405
Temporary 25,000 3 25,003
104,089 951 105,040

Police and Crime Commissioner for Greater Manchester
Annual Financial Report and Accounts 2016/17 to 7% May 2017
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This is split into amounts payable in the short term (within one year), amounts payable in the longer term and deferred liabilities
as follows:-

Short term Long term Deferred Total

liahilities
£000 £000 £000 £000
Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) 5,957 68,457 0 74,414
Ex-GMC (pre 1986) debt 0 0 5,405 5,405
Temporary 25,000 0 0 25,000
30,957 68,457 5,405 104,189

The maximum amount of PWLB principal due to mature in any future year is £10.0m in 2019/20. During the extended 2016/17
year £5.738m PWLSB principal was repaid and no new PWLB loans were taken.

11. Material Assets Acquired and Liabilities Incurred
A summary of capital expenditure for the year is given in paragraph 5d above. No material liabilities have been incurred during
the year,

12, Material and unusual charges
The accounts conform to proper practice and contain full and frank disclosures of all material sums. The following area has had
a material impact on the accounts

e Theincrease in the pensions liability of £1,400.352

Although this amount is substantial, it is part of the accounting process for retirement benefits. It is a notional debit and as such
does not represent cash payments to be made by the Police and Crime Commissioner or Chief Constable or a charge on the
General Fund.

13.  Further Information
Further information about the accounts is available from:
The Treasurer, Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA)
Churchgate House,
56 Oxford Street
Manchester M1 6EU

Telephone 0161 778 7000 E-mail enauiries@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk

In addition, members of the public have a statutory right to inspect the accounts before the audit commences. The availability
of the accounts for inspection is advertised on the GMCA website.
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Mayor exercising his Police and Crime Commissioner Responsibilities:-
The Mayor is required;-

e To make arrangements for the proper administration of his financial affairs and to secure that one of his officers has the
responsibility for the administration of those affairs. At the Greater Manchester Combined Authority, that officer is the
Chief Finance Officer

e To manage his affairs to secure econamic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard his assets

¢ To approve the Statement of Accounts

Approval of the Statement of Accounts
In accordance with regulation 8. Paragraph 3(b) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, | approve the Statement of

Accounts.
Baroness Beverley Hughes

Deputy Mayor for Paolicing and Crime
Greater Manchester Combined Authority
25t Septamber 2017

The Chief Finance Officer Responsibilities:-

The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Police and Crime Commissioner's Statement of Accounts
which, in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in Great Britain {“the Cade of Practice”), is
required to present a true and fair view of the financial position of the Police and Crime Commissioner at the accounting date
and his income and expenditure for the year.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Finance Officer:

e Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently

Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent

Complied with the Code of Practice

Kept proper accounting records which were up to date

Took reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

Certification of Accounts

| certify that this Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Police and Crime
Commissioner at 7" May 2017, and his income and expenditure for the year ended 7" May 2017.

e~

Richard Paver, Treasurer of GMCA
29" September 2017

Page | 18
Police and Crime Commissioner for Greater Manchester
Annual Financial Repart and Accounts 2016/17 to 7" May 2017



Police and Crime Commissioner
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SINGLE ENTITY COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation;
this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement and the

Expenditure and Funding Analysis.

Restated 1.
] 2016/17 to 2016/17 2016/17
2015/16 | 2015/16 | 2015/16 Comprehantive Mermn anil Expan(iies ZthMay | to7th | to7th
| 2017 May 2017 | May 2017
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Expenditure Income | Met Expenditure Income Net
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

17,045 {92,234} (75,189) | Palicing Services 16,294 | [102,867) (86,573)
17,045 (94,234) {77,189} | COST OF SERVICES - CONTINUING OPERATIONS 16,294 | {102,867} {86,573)
596,845 0 596,845 | Funding Set aside by Police and Crime { 673,193 0 673,193

Commissioner to fund policing services J'_
613,890 {94,234) 519,656 | NET COST OF SERVICES | 689,487 | (102,867} 586,620
960 0 960 | Losses on disposal of nan-current assets | 168 0 168
94,017 (94,017} 0 | Police pensions income and Expenditure 117,192 | (117,192) 1]
94,977 {94,017) 960 | Other operating income and expenditure 117,360 | {117,192) | 168
3,909 0 3,909 | Interest payable 3,913 [ 3,913

8,287 0 8,287 | Interest element of PFl unitary Payments 7,907 1] 7,807 |

337 ] 337 | Pension interest cost 374 8] 374
0 {208) {208} | Expected return on pension assets | 0 {259) {259)
0 {464) (464) | Interest Income | 0 (a20) (420)
12,533 {672} 11,861 | Financing and Investment Income and expenditure | 12,194 {679) 11,515
0 | (107,273) | {107,273) | Precepts | 0 | (126,202} | (126,202)
0 | [182,422) | {182,422) | Revenue Support Grant 0 | (196,285} | (196,285)
0 | (249,487) | (249,487) | Police Grant 0 | ({277,833} | (277,833)
0 II {4,158} {4,158) | Council Tax Freeze Grant 0 {4,505} {4,505}
| (4,859) {4,859) | Capital grants and Contributions | 0 (4,418) (4,918)
0 | (548,199) | (548,199} | Taxation & Non Specific Grants i 0 | {609,243) | (609,243)
721,400 | (737,122} {15,722} | (SURPLUS) OR DEFICIT ON PROVISION OF SERVICES | 819,041 | {829,981) {10,940}
0 {11,506) {11,506} | Revaluation and impairment losses/ (Gains) {except fl 0 (5.618) {5,618)

thase charged to the deficit on provision of |

services}) 1
0 {1,238) (1,238} | Remeasurement of pension asset/liabilities | 1,827 0 1,827
0 (12,744) {12,744} | Other Comprehensive income and expenditure | 1,827 {5,618) {3,791)
721,400 | (749,866) {28,466) | TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (INCOME) & 820,868 | {835,599} (14,731)

EXPENDITURE

The comparative columns have been restated to reflect the presentation change introduced by the Code of Practice in 2016/17.
Due to the extended 2016/17 financial year the above figures are not comparable on a year by year basis.

| certify that the above statement presents a true and fair view of the Income and Expenditure of Police and Crime
Commissioner for Greater Manchester for the year ended 7*" May 2017.

Lo/t

Richard Paver, Treasurer of GMCA

29" September 2017
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SINGLE ENTITY BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Police and Crime
Commissioner {PCC). The net assets of the PCC (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the PCC. Reserves are
reported in two categories, usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the PCC may use to provide services, subject to the need to
maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use {for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that
may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is those that the PCC is not able to
use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the
Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that
hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis under regulations’.

31# March
2016 Balance Sheet Notes | 7thMay 2017
£000 £000
NON CURRENT ASSETS
289,467 Property, Plant and Equipment 305,920
254 Intangible Assets ‘9 282
5 Long Term Debtors 11 .0
289,726 | TOTAL LONG TERM ASSETS 306,202
CURRENT ASSETS
29,793 Short Term Investments 10 (1]
385 Assets Held for Sale 13 0
986 Inventories 16 957
60,726 Short Term Debtors 11 96,767
871 Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 12,239
92,761 | TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 109,963
CURRENT LIABILITIES
{23,427) Short Term Borrowing 10 {32,066)
{57,858) Short Term Creditors 14 {74,684)
{2,600) Provisions (<1 Year) 15 {2,036)
{1,073) PFI Lease Liability 28 (2,181)
(84,958) | TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES (110,967)
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES i)
{27,150) Long Term Provisions 15 {25,513)
{73,684) Long Term Borrowing 10 {68,676)
{52,330) PFI Lease Liability 28 {50,057)
(6,525) Transferred Debt liability {5,405)
(12) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance (387}
(2,868) Pension Liability 29 {4,869)
{162,569) | TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES {155,507)
134,960 | NET ASSETS 149,691
70,510 Usable Reserves 17 79,756
64,450 Unusahle Reserves 18 69,935
134,960 | TOTAL NET WORTH 149,691

The comparative column has been restatad to reflect a disclosure error between the Capital Adjustment Account and the

Revaluation Reserve.

| certify that the above Balance Sheet presents a true and fair view of the position of Police and Crime Commissioner as at 7%

May 2017.

feww /-

Richard Paver, Treasurer of GMCA
29" September 2017

Police and Crime Commissioner for Greater Manchester
Annual Financial Report and Accounts 2016/17




SINGLE ENTITY CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Police and Crime Commissioner Accounts
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the PCC generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash
flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key
indicator of the extent to which the operations of the PCC is funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients
of services provided by the PCC. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources
which are intended to contribute to the PCC’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in

predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital {i.e. borrowing) to the PCC.

2016/17 to

Restated | Cash Flow Statement Note Tth May 2017
£000 l £000 |

(15,722} ; Net (surplus) or deficit on the pravision of services {10,940)

3,440 | Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non cash movements o 11,396

4,859 | Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that 19 4,418

are investing and financing activities

(7,423) | Net Cash flows from operating activities. 4,874

{7,944) | Investing Activities 20 {15,143}

13,326 | Financing Activities 21 {1,009}

|

{2,041} | Net (Increase) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents {11,368)

1,170 | Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period {871)

(871) ::::L:"d cash equivalents at the end of the reporting (12,239)

| certify that the above Cash Flow Statement presents a true and fair view of the position of Police and Crime Commissioner as at

7" May 2017.

L./

Richard Paver, Treasurer of GMCA
29 September 2017

Police and Crime Commissioner for Greater Manchester
Annual Financial Report and Accounts 2016/17
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SINGLE ENTITY EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants
and precept) by the PCC in comparison with those resources consumed or earned in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more

fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. See note B.

Police and Crime Commissioner for Greater Manchester
Annual Financial Report and Accounts 2016/17

2016/17 to 2016/17 to
2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 7th May 7th May 20::5172;‘;; &
2017 2017 ¥
Net Adjustments Net Net Adjustments Net
expenditure between expenditure in expenditure between expenditure In
chargeable | funding and the chargeable | funding and the
to General accounting | Comprehensive to General accounting | Comprehensive
Fund basis Income and Fund basls Income and
Expenditure Expenditure
Statement Statement
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
{67,188) (10,250) {77,438} | Cost of policing services (82,269) {4,304) {86,573}
556,845 0 596,845 | Funding set aside by the PCC to fund policing services 673,193 0 673,193
(530,276) {5101} (535,377) Other income and expenditure {591,029} {6,531) {597,560}
(619) {15,351) {15,970) | Deficit on provision of services (105} (10,835) {10,940}
(12,497) Opening General Fund balance {13,116)
{619) Surplus {105}
(13,116) Closing General Fund balance (13,221)
) BE a Dl B =20 “Page | 25




A. ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS & FUNDING BASiS UNDER REGULATIONS

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the PCC in
the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being
available to the PCC to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. A description of the reserves that the adjustments are
made against follow;

General Fund (GF) Balance - The GF is the statutory fund into which all the receipts are required to be paid and out of which all
liabilities are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules might provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the
financial year in which liabilities and payments should impact on the GF Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with
proper accounting practice. The GF balance therefore summarises the resources the PCC is statutorily empowered to spend on
services or on capital investment at the end of the financial year.

Capital Receipts Reserve (CRR) - The CRR holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which are restricted by
statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure.
The balance on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be applied for these purposes at the year-end.

2015/16 2016/17 to 7th May 2017
Capital
General Capital General | Receipt
Fund Receipts Movement Fund H Movemen
Balance Reserve in Usable Balance | Reserve tin Usable
(GF) (CRR) Reserves {GF) {CRR}) Reserves
E£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 E000
Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustmant Account (CAA):
Reversal of items debited or credited to the CI&E Statement:
Charges for Depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 21,927 0 21,927 17,778 0 (17,778}
Amortisation of intangible assets 141 0 141 124 0 {124)
Capital grants and contributions applied (4,859) 0 {4,859} (4,418) 4,418
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of
the gain/loss on disposal to the CI&E Statement 2,829 0 2,829 1,141 {1,141)
Revaluatiton {increases)/decreases recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services {23,499} 0 {23,499) {290) o 290
Insertion of items not debited or credited to the CI&E Statement:
Statutory Provision for the Financing of Capital Investment {7,273) ] (7,273) {5,570} 0 5,570
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund balances {6,500) 0 {6,500) {4,300} 0 4,300
Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserva (CRR):
Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal
to the CI&E Statement {1,870} 1,870 0 {973) 973 0
Use of the CRR to finance new capital expenditure 0 {5,294) {5,294} 0 {4,027) 4,027
Adjustment primarily involving the Financial Instruments Adjustment
Account:
Amount by which finance costs charged to the CI&E Statement are
different from finance costs chargeable in the year in accordance with
statutory requirements 121 0 121 120 0 {120}
Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve:
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the
CIBE Statement 477 1] 477 458 0 {458)
Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners
payable in the year {215) 0 {215) {284) 0 284
Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment
Account:
Amount by which Precept income credited to the CI&E Statement is
different from precept income calculated for the year in accordance with
statutory requirements {1,331) 0 {1,331) {2,396} 0 2,396
Adjustment primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account:
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CI&E Statement on
an accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in
accordance with statutory reguirements 15 0 15 {(30) 30
Fotal Adjustments {20,037} {3,424) {23,461) 1,360 {3,054) 1,694
Page | 26
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C. OFFICER REMUNERATION

A - EXIT COSTS

Payments are made as a result of the departure of staff from the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office. The total cost per
band and the total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below:

Exit package cost band Number of Number of other Total number of Total cost of exit
compulsory departures exit packages by packages in each
redundancies agreed cost band band
2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 | to 7th
May May May May 2017
2017 2017 2017
£000 £000
E£0- £20,000 0 | 0 1 o 1 0 10 0
£20,001 - £40,000 1] 1 0 2 0 48
Total 1 1 1 1 2 10 48

The Police and Crime Commissioner terminated 2 contracts in 2016/17, incurring liabilities of £0.048 (1 contract costing

£0.010m in 2015/16). See note A above for the number of exit packages and total cost per band. These and amounts relate to
redundancy pay, pay in lieu of notice and pension strain.

D. CASHFLOW OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

2015/16 The adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non cash movements 2016/17 to

£000 7th May 2017
£000

1,566 | Depreciation/iImpairment and Revaluations charged to the CI&E (17,488}
{141) | Amortisation of Intangibla Assets. {124)
{738) | Increase/{Decrease) in impairment for bad debts 447
{6,550) | Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors (13,071)
(12,536) | {Increase)/Decrease in Debtors 35,501
(166) | {Increase)/Decrease in Inventories {29)
{262) | Movement in Pension Liability (174)
{953) | Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current assets held for sale, sold or derecognised (168)
23,218 | Other non-cash adjustments 6,502
3,440 11,396

Police and Crime Commissioner for Greater Manchester
Annual Financial Report and Accounts 2016/17 to 7™ May 2017
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E. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES

Various pensions’ disclosures are required as notes to the accounts; the majority of information can be identified from the group
notes with the exception of the fair value of scheme assets shown below;

Fair value of scheme assets

2Dis/ae 2016/17 to 7th May 2017
Quoted | Quoted .

Quoted Quoted Percentage | prices prices Percentage

prices in prices not Total of Total in not in Total of Total
Local Government Pension Scheme active in active Assets active active Assets
assets comprised markets markets markets | markets

£000 £000 £000 % £000 E000 £000 %

Equity Securities:
Consumer 565 0 565 9% 716 0 716 9%
Manufacturing 465 ¢ 465 7% 734 v} 734 10%
Energy and utilities 344 0 344 5% 587 0 587 %
Financial institutions 623 0 623 10% 201 0 901 12%
Health and care 268 o 268 4% 316 0 316 4%
Information technology 144 ) 144 2% 224 1} 224 3%
Other 85 o 85 2% 150 0 150 2%
Sub-total Securities 2,494 o 2,494 39% 3,628 0 3,628 a4r%
Debt Securities
Corporate Bonds (investment grade) 320 0 320 S% 418 0 418 5%
UK Government Bonds 51 0 51 1% 116 0 116 2%
Other 200 ] 200 3% 278 ] 278 4%
Sub-total Dabt Securities 571 0 571 9% 812 0 B12 11%
Private equity:
All 0 161 161 2% 0 0 0 0%
Sub-total private equity 0 161 161 2% 1) 0 0 0%
Real Estata: 5
UK Property 0 202 202 I 0 0 0 o%
Sub-total Real Estate ] 202 202 3% 0 0 0 0%
Investment funds and Unit Trusts;
Equities 1,788 0 1,788 28% 2,207 (1] 2,207 29%
Bands 499 0 499 8% 629 (1] 629 8%
Infrastructure 0 86 86 1% 0 0 0 0%
Other 126 312 438 7% 158 v} 158 2%
Sub-total other investment funds 2,413 398 2,811 4% 2,994 [1] 2,994 39%
Derivatives:
Other 17 a 17 0% 0 o (1} 0%
Sub-total Derivatives 17 0 17 0% 0 ] 0 0%
Cash and cash equivalents 162 0 162 1% 245 0 245 3%
Sub-total cash and cash equivalents 162 0 162 3% 245" [ 245 3%
Total assets '5,657 761 6,418 100% 7,679 o 7,678 100%

Readers of the accounts should be aware that the figures in the Statement of Accounts have been prepared for the purposes of
1A519 only and have no validity in other circumstances. In particular, they are not relevant for calculations undertaken for
funding purposes, for accounting under international accounting standards and for other statutory purpases under UK pension’s

legislation.

Police and Crime Commissioner for Greater Manchester

Annual Financial Report and Accounts 2016/17
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GROUP COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation;
this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Restated Restated Restated
2016/17 to 2016/17 2016/17
2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 7th May to 7th to 7th
2017 May 2017 | May 2017
Gross Grass Note Gross Gross
Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

| 581,929 {94,234) 487,695 | Policing Services 605,555 {102,867} 502,688
| 58182 (94,234) 487,695 | COST OF POLICING SERVICES 605,555 | (102,867) 502,688
| 960 0 960 | Losses on disposal of nan-current assets 168 0 168
94,017 (94,017} 0 | Police pensions income and Expenditure 117,192 {117,192} [4]
94,977 {94,017) 960 | Other operating income and expenditure 117,360 | (117,152) 168
! 3,909 0 3,909 | Interest payable 3,913 | 0 3,913
8,287 0 8,287 | Interest element of PFl unitary Payments 7,907 0 7,907
255,516 0 255,516 | Pension interest cost 29 262,941 0 262,941
0 (19,345) (19,345} | Expected return on pension assets 29 0 {23,628} {23,628)

|
i 0 {a64) (464) | Interest Income 0 {420) (420}
267,712 {19,809) 247,903 | Financing and Investment Income 274,761 | {24,048} 250,713
0 {107,273) {107,273) | Precepts 0 {126,202) {126,202)
| 0 [182,422) {182,422} | Revenue Support Grant 0 {196,285} {196,285)
0| (249,487} | (249,487} | Police Grant 0 | (277,833) | (277,833)
| ) (4,158) (4,158) | Council Tax Freeze Grant 0 (4,505) {4,505
0 (4,859) (4,859} | Capital grants and Contributions 0 (4,418} |  {a,418]
0 | {548,199) | {548,199} | Taxation & Non Specific Grants 0| (505,243} | (609,243)
944,618 {756,259) 188,359 | (SURPLUS) OR DEFICIT ON PROVISION OF SERVICES 997,676 (853,350} 144,326
0 {11,506} (11,506} | Revaluation and impairment gains/losses {except 0 {5,618) {5,618}

those charged to the deficit on provision of services)

0 | (1,220,229} | (1,220,229} | Remeasurement of pension asset/liabilities 1,245,657 0 | 1,245,657
0 | (1,231,735} | {1,231,735) | Other Comprehensive income and expenditure 1,245,657 {5,618) | 1,240,039
944,618 | (1,987,994) | (1,043,376) | TOTAL COMPREHENS!VE [INCOME) & EXPENDITURE 2,243,333 (858,968) | 1,384,365

The comparative columns have been restated to reflect the presentation change introduced by the Code of Practice in 2016/17.

| certify that the above statement presents a true and fair view of the Group Income and Expenditure for the extended year

ending on 7" May 2017,

Lt

Richard Paver, Treasurer of GMCA
29 September 2017

Police and Crime Commissioner for Greater Manchester
Annual Financial Report and Accounts 2016/17
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET

The Group Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Group. The
net assets of the Group (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Group. Reserves are reported in two
categories, usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Group may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a
prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be
used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is those that the Group is not able to use to
provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses {for example the Revaluation
Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing
differences shown in the Movement in Reservas Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under

regulations’.

31* March 2015 Balance Sheet Notes | 7th May 2017
£000 £000
NON CURRENT ASSETS
289,467 Property, Plant and Equipment 305,920
254 Intangible Assets 282
5 Long Term Debtors 11 0
289,726 | TOTAL LONG TERM ASSETS 306,202
CURRENT ASSETS
29,793 Short Term Investments 10 1}
385 Assets Held for Sale 13 [
986 Inventories 16 957
60,726 Short Term Debtors 11 96,767
871 Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 12,239
92,761 | TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 109,963
| CURRENT LIABILITIES
{23,427) Short Term Borrowing 10 (32,066)
(61,836) Short Term Creditors 14 {79,406)
{2,600) Provisions (<1 Year} 15 {2,036)
{1,073} PFI Lease Liability 28 {2,181)
(88,936} | TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES {115,689}
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
{27,150} Long Term Provisions 15 {25,513)
{73,684) Long Term Borrowing 10 {68,676)
{52,330) PFl Lease Liability 28 (50,057)
{6,525) Transferred Debt liability 10 {5,405)
{12) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance (987}
(6,165,324) Pension Liability 29 {7,565,676)
(6,325,025} | TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES {7,716,314_) ‘||
(6,031,474) | NET ASSETS {7,415,838) 1
70,510 Usable Reserves 17 79,756
{6,101,984) Unusable Reserves 18 17,495,594
(6,031,474) | TOTAL NET WORTH {7,415,838)

The comparative column has been restated to reflect a disclosure error between the Capital Adjustment Account and the

Revaluation Reserve.

| certify that the above Balance Sheet presents a true and fair view of the position of the group for the extended year ending on

7" May 2017.

e /&

Richard Paver, Treasurer of GMCA
29 September 2017

Police and Cnime Commissioner for Greater Manchester
Annual Financial Report and Accounts 2016/17
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GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Group Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Police and Crime Commissioner Group
Accounts during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Group generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by
classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating
activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Group is funded by way of taxation and grant income or
from the recipients of services provided by the Group. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have

been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Group’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from

financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital {i.e. borrowing} to the Group.

! | 2016/17 |
| ! to 7th
| May
| 2015/16 | Cash Flow Statement Note 2017
i
£000 | £000
188,359 | Net (surplus} or deficit on the provision of services 144,326
' |
{200,641) = Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non cash movements 13 {143,870)
II Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that
4,859 | are investing and financing activities. 19 4,418
{7,923} | Net Cashi flows from operating activities. 4,874
|
{7,944) | Investing Activities 20 [15,143)
13,326 | Financing Activities 21 (1,099)
(2,041) | Net (Increase) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents {11,358)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
1,170 | reporting period {871)
(871) | Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period (12,239)

| certify that the above Group Cash Flow Statement presents a true and fair view of the position at Police and Crime
Commissioner as at 7'" May 2017,

e

Richard Paver, Treasurer of GMCA
29'h September 2017

Police and Crime Commissioner for Greater Manchester
Annual Financial Report and Accounts 2016/17 to 7" May 2017
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GROUP EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants
and precept) by the PCC in comparison with those resources consumed or earned in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices. Incormne and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more

fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

2016/17 to 2016/17 to 201617 to 7th
LA 2015/16 2015/16 7thMay2017 | 7thMay2017 |  May2017
Net Adjustments Net | Net Adjustments | Netexpenditure |
expenditure between expenditure in | expenditure hetween In the {
chargeableto | funding and the chargeable to | funding and Comprehensive
General Fund accounting Comprehensive General Fund accounting tncome and
basis Income and basis Expenditure
Expenditure Statement
Statement
]
- E000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
|
I
| 529,657 {41,962) 487,695 | Cost of policing services 590,924 ;| (88,236} 502,688
{530,276) 230,941 {299,335) Other income and expenditure {591,029) 232,667 {358,362)
(619) 188,979 188,360 | Deficit on provision of services {105) 134,431 144,326
{12,497) Opening General Fund balance {13,116)
(619} Surplus 105
{13,116) Closing General Fund balance (13,011)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED, NOT ADOPTED

The Code of Practice has introduced a number of changes in accounting policies which will be required from 1* April 2018. These
changes are not considered to have a significant impact on the Statement of Accounts as outlined below:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments will be effective from 1* January 2018. The standard includes:
e Asingle classification approach for financial assets driven by cash flow characteristics and how an instrument is managed
e Aforward looking “expected loss” model for impairment rather than the current “incurred loss” model
¢ A new provision on hedge accounting

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers will be effective from 1* January 2018. This provides a comprehensive
standard for revenue recognition to address inconsistent practices.

IFRS 16 Leases will be effective from 1* January 2019. This standard eliminates the classification of leases as either operating or
financial and introduces a single lessee accounting model. Lessees will be required to recognise:

»  Assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months unless the underlying asset is of low value

o Depreciation of leased assets reported separately from interest on lease liabilities

2 CRITICALJUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note, the Police and Crime Commissioner has had to make certain judgements
about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The following are significant management
judgements made in applying the accounting policies of the Commissioner that have the most significant effect on the
Statement of Accounts. Material estimation uncertainties are described in Note 3.

Transfer of functions -

The functions of the Greater Manchester Palice and Crime Commissioner (PCC}), were transferred by Parliamentary Order {'The
Greater Manchester Combined Authority (Transfer of Police and Crime Commissioner Functions to the Mayor} Order 2017), to
the Elected Mayor of Greater Manchester with effect from 8 May 2017. Under section 3 of the Order “the mayor is to be
treated, in relation to the mayor’s PCC functions, as a police and crime commissioner for the purposes of all police and crime
commissioner enactments, wherever passed or made, subject to schedule 1 of the Order”. The transfer of PCC functions to the
Elected Mayor mean that the legal entity known as Greater Manchester Police and Crime Commissioner ceased to exist as of 8
May 2017. All properties, rights and liabilities (including contracts of employment) transferred to the Greater Manchester
Combined Authority on 8 May 2017. Under the Order, all functions and decisions relating to such properties, rights and liabilities
are to be exercised and made by the Mavyor. Any receipts arising from such properties, rights and liabilities are to be paid into
the police fund kept by the mayor by virtue of section 21 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. As the
functions of PCC will continue, the accounts have been prepared on a geing concern basis.

The Statement of Accounts covers the period from 1/4/2016 to 7/5/2017, a period of 13 months and 1 week. In preparing the
Balance Sheet as at 7" May 2017 the following critical judgements were adopted by management:

s |AS19 pension entries for the period to 7/5/2017 were based upon reports obtained from the Police and Crime
Commissioners pensions actuaries as at the balance sheet date

e Non-current asset valuations as at 7/5/2017 were based upon reports obtained from the Police and crime
Commissioners Valuer as at the balance sheet date

o  CIES costs in respect of non-current assets and assets held for sale were identified at actual cost as at
30/4/2017. Management then exercised a judgement to estimate an additional 1 month and 1 week’s costs
based on these actuals to arrive at the period end date of 7/5/2017

e Loans and investments balances were obtained as at 7/5/2017

* PFl Unitary charge and balance sheet entries were accounted for on the basis of the actual position as at
30/4/2017. Management then exercised a judgement to estimate the additional accrued charge in respect of
the week to 7/5/2017. Management judgement determined that the difference in position from 30/4 to 7/5
was not material and no adjustments were made to the 30/4 balance in accounting for this item at 7/5/2017
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e Insurance estimates as at 7/5/2017 based upon a report from the insurance actuary

e Collection Fund Adjustments as at 31/3/2017

e Unusable reserves were accounted for on the basis of the actual position as at 7/5/2017

¢ Accumulated Absences and Deferred Capital Receipts were accounted for on the basis of the position as at
30/4/2017. Management judgement was that the difference in position from 30/4 to 7/5 was not material to
the financial statements

e Cash and cash equivalents were accounted for on the basis of the actual position as at 30/4/2017.
Management judgement was that the difference in position from 30/4 to 7/5 was not material to the financial
statements

May 2017 transactions were examined and the following items were deemed material and accrued into the Statement for the
first week in May:

= Pay and associated employer costs totalling £9.183m were accrued on the basis of the actual costs for May
apportioned over S working days
Police grant of £9.183m to match the above expenditure accrual

e Depreciation of £1.800m for an additional 1 month and 1 week’s costs based an these actuals to 30/4/2017

s Police pension income and expenditure of £4.244m into the Police Pension Fund Account based on 7 days out
of 31 of the actual May pensions payments

+ Employers contribution to the Police Pension Fund Account of £2.656m and matching grant income based on 7
days out of 31 of the actual May pensions payments
A short term loan of £5.0m
A VAT refund of £3.673m

# Other cash income of £0.634m

Funding - There is a degree of uncertainty about future tevels of funding for Police and Crime Commissioners. However, the
Commissioner has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the
Commissioner might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service provision.

Private Finance Initiatives (PFI) and similar Arrangements - PFl and similar arrangements have been considered to have an
implied finance lease within the agreement. In reassessing the leases, the Police and Crime Commissioner has estimated the
implied interest rate within the leases to calculate interest and principal payments. In addition the future Retail Price Index (RPI)
increase within the contracts has been estimated throughout the remaining period of the contract.

Leases- The Police and Crime Commissioner examined his leases, and classified them as either operational or finance leases. In
some cases the lease transaction is not always conclusive and the Police and Crime Commissioner used judgement in
determining whether the lease is a finance lease arrangement that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership.

3 ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made about the future or that are
otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors.
However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the
assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Balance Sheet at the extended year ending on 7*" May 2017 for which there is a significant risk of material
adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment - Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions
about the level of repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets. If the useful life of assets is
reduced, depreciation increases and the carrying amount of the assets falls. It is estimated that the annual depreciation charge
for buildings would increase by approximately £0.116m for every year that useful lives had to be reduced.
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Property Valuations and Impairments Assessments - Professional valuations of all land and property assets is obtained in
accordance with Accounting Guidance. In practice this is done on a rolling 5 year basis with each asset being valued at least once
every 5 years. The carrying value of assets is also reassessed when capital expenditure has been incurred on them. Before the
recession the trend had been upwards but in recent years some assets have reduced in value between valuations, whilst others
have increased in value. In the opinion of the Valuer, there is no trend that would recommend a general impairment of the
property held. If such a trend were to appear this would be reflected by a reduced asset value and a reduction in either the
Capital Adjustment Account or the Revaluation Reserve. A 1% reduction in asset values would generate a reduction of around
£2.833m.

Pensions Liability - Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgments related to the
discount rate used. This includes the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates
and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to provide expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied. During 2016/17 the actuaries determined that the net pension liability had increased by
£1,400.352m. Please see note 28 for further details.

Provisions — The estimates for short term and long term insurance provisions are based on a combination of information
provided by an independent actuary and an estimation of likely future claims arising from prior year incidents. The basis of the
calculation is the average number of total claims multiplied by the average cost per claim settled in previous years.

Debt Impairment - At 7" May 2017 there was a debtor’s balance of £96.767m. A review of significant balances suggested that
an impairment of doubtful debts of £14.3m was appropriate. If collection rates were to deteriorate an increase in the amount of
the impairment of the doubtful debts would be required.

4 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Treasurer on 24th July 2017. Events taking place after this date are
not reflected in the financial statements or notes.
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5 ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER
REGULATIONS

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the
Commissioner in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory
provisions as being available to the Commissioner to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

The following sets out a description of the reserves that the adjustments are made against.

General Fund Balance - The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of the Commissioner are required to
be paid and out of which all liabilities of the Commissioner are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules might provide
otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities and payments should impact on the General Fund
Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting practice. The General Fund Balance therefore
summarises the resources that the Commissicner is statutorily empowered to spend on his services or on capital investment at
the end of the financial year.

Capital Receipts Reserve - The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which are
restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside to finance historical capital
expenditure. The balance on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be applied for these purposes at the year-end.

2015/16 2016/17 to 7th May 2017
General Capital Movement | General Capltal Movement
Fund Receipts in Usable Fund Receipts in Usable
Balance Reserve Reserves Balance Reserve Reserves
{GF) (CRR} (GF) {CRR}
£000 E£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account (CAA):
Reversal of items debited or credited to the CI&E Statement:
Charges for Depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 21,927 0 21,927 17,778 0 {17,778)
Amortisation of intangible assets 141 0 141 124 0 {124)
Capital grants and contributions applied {4,859} 0 {4,859} {4,418) 0 4,418
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on 2,829 1] 2,829 1,141 0 {1,141)
disposal to the CI&E Statement
Revalvation {increases)/decreases recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision {23,499) o] {23,499} (290} 0 230
of Services
Insertion of items not debited or credited to the CI&E Statement:
Statutory Provision for the Financing of Capital Investment {7.273) 1] {7,273) {5,570) 0 5,570
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund balances {6,500) {6,500) {4,300} o 4,300
Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve (CRR):
Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CI&E {1,870) 1,870 o {973) 973 [
Statement
Use of the CRR to finance new capitzal expenditure 0 {5,294) {5,294) o {4,027) 4,027
Adjustment primarily involving the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account:
Amount by which finance costs charged to the CI&E Statement are different from 121 0 121 120 0 {120}
finance costs chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements
Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve:
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the CI&E 415,436 0 415,436 392,869 4} [{392,869)
Statement
Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the {210,844) 0 (210,844) | (238,174) 0 238,174
year
Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account: 0 0 ]
Amount by which Precept income credited to the CI&E Statement is different from (1,331) {1,331) {2,396) 0 2,396
precept income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements
Adjustment primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account:
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CI&E Statement on an accruals {233) 0 {233) 715 0 {715)
basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with
statutory requirements
Total Adjustments 184,045 (3,424} 180,621 156,626 {3,054) (153,572)
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7. TRANSFERS TO / FROM EARMARKED RESERVES

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund in earmarked reserves to provide financing for future
expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund expenditure in 2016/17.

The following table and note explains the amount and purpose of the earmarked reserves held by the Commissioner.

Transfers Transfers
Balance at Balance at Out n
31st Transfers Transfars 31st 2016/17 2015/16 Balance at
March OQut In March to 7th to 7th 7th May

Earmarked Reserves 2015 2015/16 2015/16 2016 May 2017 | May2017 2017

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
PCC Transformation Reserve 20,000 {3,611) o 16,389 (1} 0 16,389
PCC Community Crime Fund 9,260 {302) 4 8,962 {159) 0 8,803
PCSO Reserve 957 0 0 957 o 0 957
MOJ Commissioning 5,516 {1'504) o 3,912 O 6 3,912
PCC Commissioning Reserve 4,632 {88) 1,368 5912 (2) 75 5,985
Bank Holidays 720 (585) 0 135 0 58 193
Police protective Equipment 521 0 17 538 17 555
1S Transformation Programme o 0 o 0 o 1,507 1,907
Positive Action o 0 0 0 o 837 537
Operational Contingency o 0 o 0 o 5,532 5,532
Capital Expenditure o 0 o 0 0 2,603 2,603
PCC Place Based Integration Reserve o 0 o 0 1,278 1,278
Other 3,108 {1,568} 2,169 3,709 {2,775} 3,896 4,830
| Total 44,714 {7,758) 3,558 40,514 (g_,'B__BG) 15,903 53,481

PCC Transformation Reserve - established to support the development and delivery of the modern policing model

PCC Community Crime Fund - established to deliver projects which contribution to the delivery of the Police and Crime Plan
objectives

Police Community Support Officers {PCSO) Reserve - established to fund additional Police Community Support Officers

Ministry of Justice Commissioning Reserve - This reserve is set aside from funding provided by the Ministry of Justice for
Restorative justice commissioning

Police and Crime Commissioner {PCC) Commissioning Reserve - This reserve has been set up to fund various victims
support and safeguarding schemes

Bank Holidays - established to fund policing cost arising from the differing number of bank holidays in financial years
Police Protective Equipment - This reserve has been created to fund future issues of operational equipment

IS Transformation Programme — This reserve is to fund future Information Services Transformation Programme revenue
costs

Positive Action — This reserve has been created to fund future wellbeing costs

Operational Contingency — This reserve has been created for a number of potential one off costs for which there is
currently no budget provision ’

Capital expenditure - This reserve is to fund future ISTP capital

PCC Place Based Integration Reserve - This reserve has been created for a multi-year programme funded from the 2017/18
revenue hudget

Other Reserves - This combined reserve consists of a number of smaller miscellaneous reserves all with balances below £1m
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The table below shows the movement in the Commissioner’s Property, Plant and Equipment:

Vehicl
Movements in 2016/17 to 7th May 2017 ;';:i;': Plant & ‘r:'s':::’ ‘:::es:_::t?:‘: Total .::,L:s:: ::
Equipment PPE
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Movements in Cost/valuation:
Amaunt at 1 April 2016 240,376 140,670 1,526 20,724 403,296 75,238
Additions 259 5,343 0 23,524 29,126 0
Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the
Revaluation Reserve 2,907 183 0 0 3,090 4]
Revaluation increases/ (decreases} recognised in the Surplus
Deficit on the Provision of Services 309 (19} 0 0 290 0
De-recognition - disposals 0 {10,940) 0 i} {10,940) 0
Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for sale {400) 0 0 0 {400} 0
Assets transferred (to)/from Assets under construction 88 5,894 0 {5,981) 1 0
Amount at 7th May 2017 243,539 141,131 1,526 38,267 424,463 75,238
Movements in Depreciation and Impalrment
Amount at 1* April 2016 (2,465) {111,362) (3} 0 {113,830) {4,723)
Depreciation Charge for 2016/17 (6,407) (11,367) {4) 1} (17,778) {3,860)
Derecognition - Disposals 0 10,539 0 ] 10,539 0
Accumulated depreciation written out 1,387 1,139 2,526 0
Amount at 7th May 2017 (7,485) {111,051) (7} 0 {118,543) {8,583)
Net Book Value
at 7th May 2017 236,054 30,080 1,519 38,267 305,920 66,655
at 31 March 2016 237,911 29,308 1,523 20,724 289,466 70,515
Nature of asset holding at 7th May 2017
Owned 169,399 30,080 1,519 38,267 239,265 0
PFl and similar arrangements 66,655 0 0 0 56,655 66,655
Total 236,054 30,080 1,519 38,267 305,920 66,655
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Vehi : PFl assets
Movements in 2015/16 a:;h:;[:':;:‘ :s P!a:tlif' s:’::::': ':::;:sr:;?:': Total included in
Equipment PPE
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Movements In Cost/valuation:
Amount at 1st April 2015 230,216 143,557 2,070 8,490 384,333 71,660
Additions 559 1,410 0 14,750 16,719 0
Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the
Revaluation Reserve 9,493 1,935 53 0 11,481 6,229
Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the Surplus
Deficit on the Provision of Services 1,235 {2,254} {a4) 0 {1,063) {2,651)
De-recognition - disposals 0 {6,326} {207) 0 {6,533) 0
De-recognition - other {624} 0 0 0 {624) 0
Assets reclassified {to}/from Held for sale {952} 0 {66) 0 {1,018) 0
Assets transferred (to)/from Assets under construction 169 2,347 0 {2,516) 0 0
Other movements in cost or valuations 281 0 {281) 0 0 0
Amount at 31st March 2016 240,377 140,669 1,525 20,724 403,255 75,238
Movements in Depreciation and Impairment
Amount at 1st April 2015 {16,183) {105,169) {18} 0 {121,370} (12,822)
Charge for 2015-16 {9,191) {12,727} {9} 1] {21,927} (3,243)
De-recognition - disposals 1] 4,280 4 0 4,284 0
Other movements in depreciation and Impairment {6) 0 6 o 0 0
Accumulated depreciation written out 22,916 2,254 15 0 25,185 11,342
Amount at 31st March 2016 (2,964) {111,362) (2) ] {113,828) {a,723)
Nature of asset holding at 315t March 2016
at 31st March 2016 237,913 29,307 1,523 20,724 289,467 70,515
at 31st March 2015 214,033 38,388 2,052 2,490 262,963 58,838
Nature of asset holding at 31st March 2016
Owned 167,398 29,307 1,523 20,724 218,952 0
PFI and similar arrangements 70,515 0 0 0 70,515 70,515
Total 237,913 29,307 1,523 20,724 289,467 70,515

The Police and Crime Commissioner requested the Valuer to review land and building assets to establish if assets not valued in
the year differed materially from their fair value.

Revaluations

The Police and Crime Commissioner carried out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment
required to be measured at fair value Is revalued at least every five years. All valuations were carried out externally by
S.Gwatkin, M.R.I.C.S. (Urban Vision Ltd}. Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the methodologies
and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The furniture
contents of buildings are carried at 7.5% of the assets Gross Carrying Amount and furniture values move with revaluations.
Valuations of vehicles, plant and equipment are based on historic cost adjusted if necessary for current prices.

The significant assumptions applied to estimating the fair values are:

That no high alumina cement, ashestos, or other deleterious material was used in the construction of any property and
that none has been subsequently incorporated

That the properties are not subject to any unusual or especially onerous restrictions, encumbrances or outgoings and
that good title can be shown

That the properties and their values are unaffected by any matters which would be revealed by a local search or
inspection of any register and that the use and occupation are both legal

That inspection of those elements of any of the building’s parts which have not been examined would not cause
alteration of opinion of value

That the land and properties are not contaminated

That no allowances have been made for any rights, obligations or liabilities arising from the Defective Premises Act
1972

Page | 44

Police and Crime Commissioner for Greater Manchester
Annual Financial Report and Accounts 2016/17 to 7" May 2017



Other Land Vehicles, Plant Surplus
& Buildings & Equipment Assets AUC Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Carried at Historic Cost: 140,881 0 38,267 179,148
Valued at fair value:
2012/13 143 0 0 0 143
2013/14 69 1] o] a 69
2014/15 8,170 0 0 0 8,170
2015/16 206,730 0 1,291 0 208,021
2016/17 28,427 250 235 0 25,912
Total 243,539 141,131 1,526 38,267 424,463

Capital Commitments

At 7" May 2017, the Police and Crime Commissioner has entered into a number of contracts in 2017/18 for the construction or
enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles. Similar commitments at 31* March 2016 were £46.319m. The
major commitments for Property Plant and Equipment are:

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
Description £000 £000 £000 Total
Business Support 4,504 320 0 4,824
Information Technology Schemes 729 3,839 3,524 8,092
ISTP 20,288 307 399 20,994
Total 25,521 4,466 3,923 33,910

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Police and Crime Commissioner accounted for his software as intangible assets where such software has been acquired
separately from a particular IT system. All software is given a useful life based on the period that the software is expected to be
of economic benefit to the Commissioner. This life is estimated initially as five years.

The carrying amount of intangible assets is amortised on a straight line basis. Total IT costs are allocated to services by
apportionment thus it is not possible to state accurately how much amaortisation is attributable to each service heading.

The annual review of software values has not resulted in any impairment of software in the current year. No internally
generated assets are included in the following totals. The movement on Intangible Asset balances during 2016/17 to 7/5/17 is as
follows:

2015/16 2016/17 to
7th May 2017
£000 -£000
3,117 | Gross carrying amounts at start of year 3,117
{2,722) | Accumulated amortisation at start of year {2,863}
395 | Net carrying amount at start of year 254
0 | Purchases 153
0 | Disposals {985)
0 | Disposals depreciation 985
{141) | Amortisation for the period {125)
254 | Net carrying amount at end of year 282
Comprising:
3,117 | Gross carrying amounts 2,285
{2,863} | Accumulated amortisation (2,003}
254 282
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments include the financial assets and liabilities of the Police and Crime Commissioner. These appear in different
sections of the balance sheet depending on their characteristics.

Note 10a - Categories of Financial Instruments
The following categories of financial instruments are carried in the balance sheet.

Long Term Current
312“:1’5"" 7th May 2017 | 31March2016 | 7th May2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
Investments
Loans and Receivables 0 16,752 [i]
Available for Sale 0 13,041 [4]
Total Investments 0 29,783 0
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash at Bank and Cash Equivalents 871 12,233
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 871 12,239
Debtors
Loans & Receivables 45,599 75,249
Total debtors 45,599 75,245
Borrowings at Amortised costs
Borrowings 80,209 74,079 23,427 32,066
Total Borrowings 80,208 74,079 23,427 32,066
Creditors at Amortised Costs
Creditors 43,548 58,550
Total Creditors 0 43,548 58,550
Other Liabllities
Private Finance Initiative 52,330 50,057 1,073 2,181
Total other Liabilities 52,330 50,057 1,073 2,181

Mote 10b - Income, Expanse, Gains & Losses
The income and expense recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in relation to Financial

Instruments are made up as follows;

Police and Crime Commissioner for Greater Manchester
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31" March 2016 7th May 2017
Financlal Financial Financlal
labilities Assets Habilities Ersncalases
Liabilities at Loans and Liahilitles at Loans and
Amortised Cost Receivables Total Amortised Cost Receivables Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £600 £000
Financial Uabilities
Interest Expense 12,195 0| 12,196 11,820 0| 13,820
Expense Included in Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services 12,196 0 12,196 11,820 0| 11,820
Financial Assets
Interest Income 0 (464) (264} 0 {420) {420}
Income (ncluded in Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services 0 {464) {64} 0 {420) {a20}
Net (Gain(/Loss for the Year 12,196 (a64) | 11,732 11,820 {420) | 11,400
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Note 10c - Fair Value of Assets & Liabilities

Financial liabilities and financial assets are carried in the balance sheet at amortised cost, they are shown below. Their fair value
can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of the
instruments, using the following assumptions;

¢ Forloans from the PWLB, new borrowing rates from the PWILB have been applied to provide the fair value

s For non PWLB loans payable, prevailing market rates have been applied to provide the fair value
e No early repayment or impairment is recognised
e The fair value of trade and other receivables and creditors is taken to be the invaiced or billed amount
e The fair value of the available for sale assets is the carrying amount
31st March 2016 7th May 2017
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial Assets
| Short Term Investments 16,752 16,761 0 1]
! Available for sale Financial Assets 13,041 13,041 0 0
| Cash & Cash Equivalents g7 871 12,239 12,238
| Debtors 45,604 45,604 75,249 75,249
Total Investments 76,268 76,277 87,488 87,488
Financlal Uabilities
PWLB Loans 79,988 110,127 74,633 96,325
Market Loans 5,012 5,063 0 1]}
Temporary Loans 11,005 11,007 25,003 25,003
Transferred Debt 7,632 7,632 6,510 6,510
Creditars 43,548 43,548 58,550 58,550
PFl and Finance Lease Liabilities 53,403 94,275 52,238 91,721
Total Borrowings 200,588 271,652 216,934 278,108

Fair Value hierarchy for financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value are as follows;
= level 1-quoted prices {unadjusted ) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Office can access at the

measurement date

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly
Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

31st March 2016 7th May 2017
levell | level2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 tevel 3 Lavel 3
Quoted Observable | Unabservable Total Quoted Observable | Unobservable | Uncbservable
Prices Inputs Inputs Prices Inputs Inputs inputs
i £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial Assets !
Short Term Investments 0 16,761 0 " 16,761 0 0 0 a |
Available for sale Financial Assets 13,041 1] 0 13,041 0 0 0 0 ]
Cash & Cash Equivalents 0 871 0 871 [4] 12,239 0 12,239 |
Debtors 0 0 45,604 45,604 0 0 75,249 75,249 |
Total Investments 13,041 17,632 | 45,604 76,277 0 12,239 75,249 87,488
Financial Liabilities |
PWLB Loans | 0 110,127 | 0 110,127 0 96,325 0 96,325
Market Loans 0 5,063 I 0 5,063 0 0 0 0
Temporary Loans 0 11,007 | 0 11,007 0 25,003 0 25,003
Transferred Debt 0 7,632 | 0 7,632 0 5,910 | 0 6,510
Creditors 0 1] 43,548 43,548 0 0 58,550 58,550
PFl and Finance Lease Liabilities 0 0 94,275 94,275 0 0 91,721 91,721
Total Borrowings 0 133,829 137,823 271,652 0 127,838 150,271 278,109
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There were no transfers between input levels during the year, and there has been no change in the valuation technique used
during the year for the financial instruments

The differences between carrying and fair value amounts are not material. No gains or losses have been recognised in the year,
Note 10d - Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments
The PCCs’ activities exposed him to a variety of financial risks;

Credit risk — the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the PCC
Liquidity risk — the possibility that the PCC might not have funds available to meet its commitments to make
payments

e Re-financing risk — the possibility that the PCC might be requiring to renew a financial instrument on maturity at
disadvantageous interest rates or terms

s Market risk — the possibility that financial loss might arise for the PCC as a result of changes in such measures as
interest rates

The PCCs’ overall risk management programme focused on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund services. Risk management was carried out under policies approved
by the PCC in the annual Treasury management strategy.

Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the PCCs’ customers.

The risk relating to investments is managed through the annual investment strategy set out in the Treasury Management
strategy document, which requires that deposits are not made with financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum
credit criteria, in accordance with the Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s credit rating services.

The annual investment strategy also imposed a maximum sum to be invested with a financial institution.

A risk of default applied to all the PCCs’ deposits, but experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to be unable to meet
their commitments.

Historically the PCC has not suffered any losses where the principal sum or the interest owing has not been repaid.

In respect of debtors, action is taken when payments become overdue, which may lead to legal action to recover the debt. At
7th May 2017, £1.882m trade debtors had been outstanding for 30 days or more (£0.447m at 31* March 2016). The PCC
provides for bad debts each year based on historical evidence updated to reflect current market conditions. The value of bad

debts written off during 2016/17 was £0.176m (£0.173m in 2015/16).

The past due but not impaired amount can be analysed by age as follows;

31" March
2016 7th May 2017
£000's £000's
Less than 3 months 270 1,783
3 to 6 months &0 25
More than 6 months 117 74
| Totals 447 1,382

Liquidity Risk

The PCC had a cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash is available as needed. If unexpected movements
happened, the Office had ready access to borrowings from an overdraft facility, the money markets and the Public Works Loan
Board.

There was no significant risk that the PCC was unable to meet his commitments under financial instruments. The risk was that
the PCC will be bound to replenish a significant proportion of his borrowings at a time of unfavourable interest rates. The PCC
managed its maturity profile accordingly, and sets limits on the proportion of his borrowings repayable in specified pericds.
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All financial assets are due to be paid in less than one year.

Refinancing and maturity risk

The PCC maintained a significant debt and investment portfolio. Whilst the cash flow procedures were considered against the
refinancing risk procedures, langer term risk to the PCC related to managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as
they mature.

The approved treasury indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt and the limits placed on investments placed for greater
than one year in duration are the key parameters used to address this risk. The PCC approved treasury and investment strategies
address the main risks, these include;

¢  Monitoring the maturity profile of financial liabilities and amending the profile through either new borrowing or the
rescheduling of existing debt

e Monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for the PCCs' day to day cash
flow needs

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows:

31st March 7th May
2016 Borrowing 2017
£000 £000
24,500 Under 1 year 34,247
8,437 Between 1 and 2 years' time 7,552
25,533 Between 2 and 5 years' time 30,004
27,947 Between 5 and 10 years' time 28,221
70,622 10 years and above 58,361
157,039 Total 158,385

All trade creditors are due to be paid in less than one year.

Interest Rate Risk

The PCC was exposed to risk in terms of his exposure to interest rate movements on his borrowings and investments.
Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the PCC. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the following
effects:

= Borrowings at variable rates - the interest expense charged to the surplus or deficit on the provision of services will rise

»  Borrowings at fixed rates — the fair value of the liabilities will fall

s Investments at variable rates — the interest income credited to the surplus or deficit on the provision of services will rise

s Investments at fixed rates — the fair value of the assets will fall

Borrowings and Investments are not carried at fair value 50 nominal gains and losses would not impact on the surplus or deficit
on the provision of services, or other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments would have been posted to
the surplus or deficit on the provision of services and affect the General Fund balance. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate
investments that have a quoted market price will be reflected in other comprehensive Income and expenditure.

The treasury management team has an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure that feeds into the setting of the
annual budget, and has a policy to keep a maximum of 50% of borrowings in variable rate loans.

The PCC had no investments or borrowings at variable rate.
Price risk
The PCC, excluding the pension fund, did not have any equity shareholdings or marketable bonds, and therefore was not

exposed to losses arising in the movements in share prices.

Foreign exchange risk
The PCC had no material exposure to the change in foreign exchange rates.
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11. DEBTORS

Debtor balances represent amounts which are due at the financial year end but for which the cash has not been received. All
short term debtor amounts are expected to be paid within the following year.

31st March 2016 Debtors i 7th May 2017
Short Long Total Short Long Tota]
Term Term Term Term
£000 £000 £000 £000 E0OG | £000
36,547 [v] 36,547 | Central government bodies 61,854 S 0 61,854
33,458 0| 33,458 | Other PCCs & Authorities 39,474 0| 39474
8 0 8 | NHS bedies 307 0 307
953 o 953 | Public corporations and trading funds 2,407 0 2,407
1,767 5 1,772 | Other Entities and Individuals 3,783 ] 3,783
| (14,747) @ | (14,747) | Provision for Bad Debt {14,300) 0| (14,300
i 2,740 0 2,740 | Prepayments 3,242 0 3,242
i 60,726 5 60,731 | Total 96,767 0 96,767

12.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash is represented by cash in hand, petty cash balances and the Police and Crime Commissioner’s operating bank accounts.

Cash equivalents are investments that are instantly repayable to the Commissioner on demand and that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of a change in value. These are balances held in interest bearing call accounts
and money market funds with institutions meeting our required credit ratings.

31% March 7th May
2016 Cash & Cash Equivalents 2017
£000 £000

672 | Cash Held by the authority 562
{1,704} | Bank Accounts 11,671
1,903 | Cash Equivalent Short Term Investments [
871 | Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 12,239

13. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

The table below shows the balance of assets held for sale that are owned by the Commissioner:

Current
31st March 2016 7th May 2017
£000 £000

Balance outstanding at start of year 0 385
Assets newly classified as held for sale:

Property, Plant and Equipment 1,018 400
Revaluation (losses)/ gain 1 0
Assets sold (634) (785)
Balance outstanding at year-end 385 o
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14. CREDITORS

Since the Balance Sheet represents the financial position at the end of the financial year, there are outstanding monies owed at
that date which have yet to be paid. The following analysis shows the amounts owed which had not yet been paid as at 7" May
2017.

31st March 2016 Creditors I 7th May 2017
GMP PCC Total GMP pPCC Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1] {8,852) {8,852) | Central Government Bodies 0 {10,044) {10,044} .|
0 (10,298) (10,298) | Other Police and Crime Commissioners & Local Authorities 0 (12,212) | {12,212}
0 {3) {3) | NHS Bodies 0 2) i2)
i} 0 0 | Public Corporations and Trading Funds 0 {11} {11}
1] {9,725} {9,725) | Cther Entities and Individuals 0 {6,681) {6,681)
{3,978) {4,683) (8,661) | Pay (4,722) {16,788) {21,510)
0 (8,519) (8,519) | Capital 0| (12518) [ (12,518)
i} {8,425) {B,425) | Accruals & Prepaid Income 0 {9,985) {9,985)
0 {7,353} {7.353) | Seized money 0 {6,443) (6,443)
(3,978) {57,858} (61,836) | Total Creditors (4,722) (74,684) [79,4_@5)
15. PROVISIONS

Provisions are amounts set aside by the Commissioner to meet the cost of a future liability, for which the timing of the payment
is uncertain. The amounts represent the best estimate of that liability where an exact cost is not able to be determined. In line
with the Code of Practice, the provision is charged to service revenue accounts in the year it is established. When the liability
falls due, the costs are charged directly to the provision.

7th May 2017
Police Pension

Provisions Insurance Lump Sums Total

£000 £000 Other £000 £000
Balance 1st April {29,077} {586} (87) (29,750)
Additions in Year {634) 0 Q0 {634)
Amounts used in year 2,363 385 87 2,835
Balance 7th May 2017 {27,348) {201) 0 (27,549)
Short Term {1,835) (201} 0 (2,036)
Long Term (25,513 0 0 {25,513}
Balance 7th May 2017 (27,348) {201} 0 (27,549)

» Insurances — This represents amounts set aside by the Police and Commissioner to meet obligations arising in respect of
Employers and Public Liability claims and motor vehicle insurance. Payments will be made from these provisions as claims are
settled. The adequacy of the level of individual provisions is reviewed by an independent firm of actuaries based on
information and estimates relating to the number and value of claims.

e Police Pension Lump Sums = A Provision for the payment of additional lump sum retirement benefits to police officers who
retired between 2001 and 2006. In a recent case the pension ombudsman found that commutation factors used to calculate
lump sum had not been reviewed during the period above.
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16. INVENTORIES

The Police and Crime Commissioner hold inventories consisting of uniforms, spare parts for vehicle and other minor items. As

follows:
Uniform Vehicles Other Total
31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March |I 7th May

2016 7th May 2017 2016 7th May 2017 2016 7th May 2017 2016 fl 2017

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 -
Opening Balance 702 581 442 396 9 9 1,153 986
Purchases 3,366 3,726 3,226 3,228 0 0 6,592 6,954
Stock Issued 3487) | {3,780) {3,272) {3,203) 0 0 16,759} (6,983)
Closing Balance 581 527 396 421 9 ] 986 957

17. USABLE RESERVES

Usable Reserves are those reserves that contain resources which can be applied to the provision of services, either by incurring
expenses or undertaking capital investment; whether or not there are particular restrictions on exactly what the resources can

be spent on.

The table below summarises the movement of Usable Reserves, and movements can be seen in the Movement in Reserves

Statement:

Balance at Transfers Transfers | Balance at Transfers Transfars Balance at
31st March Out In | 31st March Out In 7th May
Usable Reserves | 2015 2015/16 2015/16 | 2016 2016/17 2016/17 2017
£000 £000 £000 I E£000 £000 £000 £000
General fund Balances 12,497 ol 619 13,116 0 105 13,221
)
Earmarked Reserves 44,714 {7,758} | 3,558 40,514 (2,936) 15,903 53,481
Usable Capital Receipts 6,478 (5.294) 1,870 3,054 (4,027) 973 0
PFl Reserve 14,559 {733) 1] 13,826 {772) 0 13,054
Total 78,248 {13,785} 6,047 70,510 {7,735) 16,981 79,756

General Fund Balance — This is where the General Fund balances are held to safeguard against risks identified in the Local
Government Act Report, along with General in year savings, not earmarked for specific purposes.

Earmarked Reserves — These are reserves that have been set aside to fund specific future spend, full details can be found at

Note 6.

Usable Capital Raceipts Reserve - This reserve holds Capital Receipts the Police and Crime Commissioner has received for the
sale of Assets; again this can only be used to fund future capital spending.

PFI Reserve — This reserve holds the balance of PFI grant paid by the Home Office. It can only be used to support payment of the
unitary charge. They are kept to manage the account processes in relation to the application of International Financial Reports

Standards.
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Annual Financial Report and Accounts 2016/17 to 7* May 2017

Page | 52



18. UNUSABLE RESERVES

Unusable Reserves are those that the Commissioner is not able to utilise to provide services. The table below summarises the
maovement of the group Unusable Reserves:

2015/16 2016/%7 to 7th May 2017

PCC GMP Total PCC GMP Total

£000 £000 £000 Unusable Reserves £000 £000 £000
27,092 0 27,092 | Capital Adjustment Account 28,752 1} 28,752
241 0 241 | Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 121 0 121
36,500 0 36,500 | Revaluation Reserve 40,020 0 40,020
2,965 0 2,965 | Collection Fund Adjustment Account 5,361 0 5,361
(45) {3,978) (4,023) | Accumulated Absence Reserve (15) (4,722) (4,737)
565 0 565 | Deferred Capital Receipts 565 0 565
(2,868) | {6,162,456) | {6,165,324) | Pension Reserve {4,869) | (7,560,807) | {7,565,676)
64,450 | (6,166,434) | {6,101,984) | Balance 7th May 2017 69,935 | {7,565,529) | (7,495,594)

a) Revaluation Reserve - The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Police and Crime Commissioner arising

from increases in the value of Property Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:
s Revalued or impaired and the gains are written off

e Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation; or

e Disposed of, and the gains are realised

The reserve contains only gains accumulated since 1* April 2007, the date that the reserve was created. Accumulated gains
arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital adjustment Account.

Restated
31st March Revaluation Reserve
2016 7th May 2017
£000 £000
26,510 Balance at 1% April 36,500
11,488 | Upward revaluation of assets 5,770
{6} | Downward revaluation of assets and Impairment not (154)
charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services
11,482 | Surplus/{deficit) on the revaluation of non current assets 5,616
not posted to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services
(833) | Difference between fair value depreciation and historical {1,576}
cost depreciation
{659} | Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped (520)
{1,492) | Amounts written off to the capital adjustment account (2,096)
36,500 Balance at 7th May 40,020

The balance at 31* March 2016 has been restated to correct a disclosure error between this reserve and the Capital Adjustment
account.

b} Financial Instruments Adjustment Account - The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account holds the timing
differences arising from the arrangements for accounting for income and expenses relating to certain financial instruments. The
Police and Crime Commissioner used the account to manage premiums and discounts received on the early redemption of loans
and accounting adjustments in relation to Effective Interest Rates.
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2016/17
2015/16 Financial instruments Adjustmeant to 7th
Account May 2017
£000 £000
361 | Balance Brought Forward ] 291
{120) | Premiums Charged {120)
241 | Balance at 7th May 2017 121
c) Capital Adjustment Account - The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different

arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or

enhancement of these assets under statutory provisions. The account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or
enhancement as depreciation; impairment losses and amortisation are charged to the CIES (with reconciling postings from the
Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by

the Police and Crime Commissioner as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement.

The account contains accumulated gains and losses an Investment Properties that have yet to be consumed by the PCC. The
account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property Plant and Equipment from periods prior to 1* April 2007, the
date on which the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Restated _
2016/17 to
Capital Adjustment Account 7th May
2015/16 2017
£000 £000
3,061 | Balance at 1st April 27,002
Reversal of items credited to capital expenditure and debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement:
(21,927) | Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current assets (17,778}
23,459 | Revaluation losses on Property Plant and Equipment 2580
{141) | Amortisation of Intangible assets (124)
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal as part of
(3,164) | gain loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and {1,140}
Expenditure Statement
(1,733) {18,752)
1,839 | Adjusting amounts written out of Revaluation Reserve 2,097
106 | Net amount written out of the cost of non-current assets (16,655}
consumed in the year
Capital financing applied in the year:
5,293 | Use of Capital receipts reserve to finance new capital 4,027
expenditure
4,859 | Grants and capital contributions credited to the Comprehensive 4,418
Income and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to
capital financing
Statutory Provision for the financing of capital investment
7,273 5,570
charged against the general fund balances
6,500 | Capital expenditure charged against the general fund 4,300
23,925 | Total capital financing applied in the year 18,315
27,092 | Balance at 7th May 2017 * 28,752

The balance at 31* March 2016 has been restated to correct a disclosure error between this account and the Revaluation

Reserve.
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d) Pensions Reserve - The pensions reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from different arrangements for
accounting for post-employment benefits and funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Commissioner
accounted for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned
by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and
investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to
be financed, as the Commissioner makes employer’s contributions to pension funds, or eventually pay any pensions for which it
is directly responsible. The debit balance on the pensions reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned
by past and current employees and the resources the Commissioner has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements
will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

2015/16 Pension Reserve 2016/17 to 7th May 2017
PcC GMP TOTAL PCC GMP Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(3,844} | (7.177,117) | (7,180,961) Balance at 1 April (2,868) | (5,162,456) | (6,165,324}
1,238 1,218,991 1,220,229 | Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability/ {asset) {1,827) { (1,243,830} | (1,245,657}
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or
(477) {414,959) {(415,436) | credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the provision of services in (458) {391,954) {392,412}
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
215 210,629 210,804 Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to 284 237,433 237,717
pensioners payable in the year.
{2,868) | {6,162,456) | (6,165,324} Balance at 7th May (4,869) 1; (7,560,807} | (7,565,676)
e) Collection Fund Adjustment Account - The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from

the recognition of the palice portion of council tax income {precept) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
as it falls due from council tax payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the Police and
~ Crime Commissioner from billing authorities.

2015/16 2016/17
to 7th
Collection Fund Adjustment Account May
2017
£000 £000
1,635 | Balance Brought Forward 2,965
Amount by which Precept income credited to the Comprehensive
1,330 | Income and Expenditure statement is different from Precept income 2,396
calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements.
2,965 | Balance at 7th May 2017 5,361
f) Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve - Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-

current assets but for which the cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory arrangements, the Commissioner does
not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the deferred
cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

2016/17 to
7th May
2015/16 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 2017
£000 £000
565 | Opening Balance 565
0 | Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash 0
565 | Balance at 7th May 2017 565
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g) Accumulated Absences Account - The accumulated absences account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise

on the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year e.g. annual leave

entitlement carried forward at 7*" May 2017. Statutory arrangemenis require that the impact on the General Fund balance is
neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

2015/16 Accumulated Absences Account 2016/17 to 7th May 2017
PCC GMP TOTAL PCC_ GMP Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 | F00O £000
(31) (4,226) | (4,257) | Balance Brought Forward {45) | {3,978) | {(4,023)
31 4226 4,257 Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of 45 3,978 4,023
the preceding year
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
comprehensive income and expenditure statement on
{45) {(3,978) | (4,023) | an accruals basis is different from remuneration (15) | (4,722} | {4,737)
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory
requirements
{45) (3,978) | (4,023) | alance at 7th May 20017 (15) | (a,722) | (4,737)

19. CASH FLOW STATEMENT - OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

2015/16 The adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non 2016/17 to
£000 cash movements 7th May
2017
£000
1,566 | Depreciation/lImpairment and Revaluations charged to the CI&E {17,488)
(141) | Amortisation of Intangible Assets {124)
{736} | Increasef{Decrease) in impairment for bad debts 447
(6,301) | Increasef|Decrease) in Creditors {13,816}
{12,536) | (Increase)/Decrease in Debtors 35,501
(166) | (increase}/Decrease in Inventories (29)
{204,592) | Movement in Pension Liability {154,695}
(953) | Loss on disposal of non current assets {168}
23,218 | Other nan-cash adjustments 6,502
{200,641) (143,870)
2015/16 The adjustment for items included in the net surplus or deficit an the 2016/17 to
£000 provision of services that are investing or financing activities Tth May
2017
£000
4,859 | Capital Grants credited to surplus or deficit an the provision of services 4,418
4,859 4,418
2015/16 The cash flows for operating activities include the following items 2016{17to |
£000 7th May |
2017
£000
£000 ! £000
{497) | Interest recelved | {511}
3,958 | Interest paid 3,353
8,287 | Interest element of finance lease rentals 6,098
11,748 8,940
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20. CASH FLOW STATEMENT - INVESTING ACTIVITIES

The cash flows for investing activities include the following items:

2015/16 Investing Activities 2016/17 to
7th May
2017
£000 £000
4,783 Purcha.se of property, plant and equipment, investment property and 22,821
intangible assets
{6,300) | Purchase/ {Proceeds) of shart-term and lang-term investments {31,600)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment
(1.869) property and intangible assets {873)
{4,518) | Other receipts and investing activities (5,393}
{7,944) | Net Cash flows from Investing Activities (15,143)

21, CASH FLOW STATEMENT - FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The cash flows for financing activities include the following items:

2015/16 Financing Activities 2016/17 to
7th May

2017

£000 £000
{165,810} | Cash receipts of short and long-term borrowing {224,730)
2252 Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities relating to 1164

' finance lease and on-balance sheet PFl contracts 5
176,884 | Repayments of short and long-term borrowing 222,517
13,326 | Net Cash flows from Investing Activities (1,098)
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22. OFFICERS REMUNERATION (annualised basis)

A - Officers’ Remuneration above £50,000
Note A discloses information on the number of Police and Crime Commissioner and Force employees who have received more
than £50,000 in remuneration during the year. This amount excludes any payments in relation to employee pensions.

Remuneration Band

Number of Employees

2015/16 2016/17
PcC GMP Total PCC GMP Total

£50,000 - £54,999 2 418 420 3 472 475
£55,000 - £59,999 1 225 226 1 230 231
£60,000 - £64,999 1 23 24 1 27 28
£65,000 - £69,999 0 22 22 0 19 19
£70,000 - £74,999 1 13 14 1 14 15
£75,000 - £79,999 0 20 20 1 25 26
£80,000 - £84,999 0 18 18 0 11 11
£85,000 - £89,999 1 7 8 0 10 10
£90,000 - £94,999 0 2 2 1 4 5
£95,000 - £99,999 0 1 1 0 1 1
£100,000 - £104,999 1 1 2 1 1 2
£110,000 - £114,999 0 1 1 0 2 2
£115,000 - £119,999 0 1 1 0 2 2
£125,000 - £129,999 0 2 2 0 1 1
£130,000 - £134,999 0 1 1 0 0 0
£145,000 - £149,999 0 0 0 0 1 1
£185,000 - £189,999 0 1 1 0 0 0
£200,000 - £204,999 0 0 0 0] | I 13| e 1Y

Total 7 756 763 9 821 830
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B - Senior Officers’ Remuneration (annualised basis)

Note B discloses the remuneration of defined Senior and Statutory Officers” whose annualised salary is equal to or more than
£50,000. ‘Expenses’ disclosures include car and miscellaneous expenses. The Senior Officers included in the tables following are

also included in the previous table (excluding pension contributions).

2016/17 Senlor Employee's Remuneration

Total Total
Remuneration Remuneration
Excluding Including
Pension Pension Pension
Salary | Expenses | Other | Contributions | Contributions | Contributions
Post Title Note | £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Chief Constable -lan Hopkins 197 0 5 202 46 248
Deputy Chief Constable - lan Pilling a 147 0 0] 147 35 182
Assistant Chief Constable 114 o 6 120 27 147
Assistant Chief Constable b 113 0 5 118 26 144
Assistant Chief Constable c 20 1 1] 81 19 100
Assistant Chief Constable d 91 1 4 96 22 118
Assistant Chief Constable 105 0 8 113 25 138
Assistant Chief Constable 105 1 8 114 25 139
Assistant Chief Constable 97 0 4 101 22 123
| Chief Superintendent x 21 f 1,748 42 0 1,790 357 2147
| Assistant Chief Officer Resources 110 0 20 130 20 150
| Head of Change 46 0 0 46 8 54
| Head of Change 51 0 0 51 10 61
! Acting Head of Information Services 83 2 1) 85 | 15 100
Head of Legal Services 83 2 0 8s | 16 101
Acting Head of Legal Services 68 2 o 70 | 13 83 |
Head of Business Support Services 79 2 0 81 | 15 96
Head of External Relations & | | |
Performance 89 0 0 89 | 17 106
Head of Finance 77 1| 0 78 | 14 92
Acting Head of Finance 71 ol 0 71 13 84
Head of Corporate Communications 72 1 | 0 73 | 13 86
Head of HR Service Centre B 66 0! 30 96 ' 12 108
Total 3,692 55 I 90 3,837 770 4,607
Notes 2016/17
a} The vehicle benefits for DCC Pilling in 2015/16 was for the period January to March 2016 was included on
the 2015/16 remuneration report.
b) Assistant Chief Constable on secondment
c) Assistant Chief Constable started June 2016
d) Assistant Chief Constable appointed October 2016
e) Assistant Chief Constable until September 2016
f) Chief Superintendent Posts have not been individually included due to numbers. Total costs are included
in the table with salaries ranging from £68,000 to £92,000.
g} Head of HR Service Centre was made redundant in March 2017.
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2015/16 Senior Employee’s Remuneration
Note | Salary | Expenses | Other Total Pension Total
Remuneration | Contributions | Remuneration
excluding including
Pension Pension
Post Title Contributions Contributions
|
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Chief Constable - Peter Fahy a 128 0 0 128 0 128
Chief Constable - lan Hopkins b 90 0 0 90 20 110
Deputy Chief Constable - lan

Hopkins c 80 0 20 100 19 119
Deputy Chief Constable d 35 0 2 37 8 45
Assistant Chief Constable e 119 0 16 135 26 : 161
Assistant Chief Constable 107 0 13 120 25 145
Assistant Chief Constable f 62 0 24 86 14 100
Assistant Chief Constable g 63 0 13 81 16 97
Assistant Chief Constable 102 1 8 111 25 136
Assistant Chief Constable 97 2 7 106 23 129
Assistant Chief Constable a5 1 4 100 22 122
Assistant Chief Constable 34 1 2 37 7 a4
Chief Superintendent x 20 h 1,669 43 1 1,713 342 2,055
Assistant Chief Officer Resources 109 0 23 132 19 151
Head of Change 91 0 0 91 15 106
Acting Head of Information Services 83 2 0 85 14 99
Head of Legal Services 82 2 0 84 14 98
Head of Business Support 78 2 o 80 14 94
Head of External Relations &

Performance 89 0 1] 89 15 104
Head of Finance 72 1 0 73 12 85
Acting Head of Finance 69 0 o 69 12 81
Head of Corporate Communications 72 1 1] 73 12 85
Head of Human Resources 66 o 66 11 77
Totals 3,497 56 133 3,686 68S 4,371

Notes: 2015/16

a) Chief Constable retired in October 2015

b} & c} Chief Constable was appointed in November 2015, previously the Deputy Chief Constable

d} New Deputy Chief Constable Appointed 6 January 2016

) Assistant Chief Constable who was Acting Deputy Chief Constable November 2015 to 6 January 2016°

f) Assistant Chief Constable left in October 2015

g} Assistant Chief Constable retired in November 2015

h) Chief Superintendent Posts have not been individually included due to numbers. Total costs are included in
the table with salaries ranging from £64,000 to £90,000.
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C - EXIT COSTS

Payments are made as a result of the departure of police officers and staff from the Police and Crime Commissioner and the
Police Force. The total cost per band and the total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table

below:
Exit package cost Number of Number of other Total number of Total cost of exit
band compulsory departures exit packages by packages in each
redundancies agreed cost band band
2015/16 | 2016/27 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2015/16 | 2016/17
to 7th to 7th to 7th to 7TH
May May May May 2017
2017 2017 2017

£000 £000
£0 - £20,000 6 12 17 33 23 45 238 470
£20,001 - £40,000 6 4 8 20 14 24 376 700
£40,001 - £60,000 0 1 7 | 9 373 466
£60,001 - £80,000 1] 0 4 5 5 269 338
£80,001 - £100,000 1] 0 1 1 1 82 84
£100,001 - £150,000 0 [ i [ 0 101 0
Total 12 17 38 67 50 B4 1,439 2,058

D - TERMINATION BENEFITS '

The Police and Crime Commissioner terminated the contracts of a number of employees in 2016/17, incurring liabilities of
£2.058m {£1.439m in 2015/16). See note 21C for the number of exit packages and total cost per band. These amounts relate to

redundancy pay, pay in lieu of notice and pension strain.

23. EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

The Police and Crime Commissioner has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts,
provided by the Commissioner’s external auditors Grant Thornton UK LLP.

2015/16 2016/17 to 7th May 2017
PCC | GMP | Group PCC | GMP. { Group
£000 £000 £000 £000 | £000 £000
46 23 69 | Fees payable with regard to external audit services 46 23 ‘69
carried out by the appointed auditor for the year.
a5 23 69 | Total Cost 46 23 69

24. GRANT INCOME

The Police and Crime Commissioner credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income

and Expenditure Statement in 2016/17;

2016/17 to 7th
2015/16 May 2017
Credited to Services within cost of services continuing operations ay
£000's £000's

Counter Terrorism Hub 19,420 22,465
Counter Terrarism Prevent 3,092 2,794
PFl Grant 5,315 5,758
Asset Incentivisation 3,682 1,599
Security 4,360 4,147
PCC Commissioning Fund 6,668 5,645
Pre 1990 Debt Charge 793 774
Hillsborough 11,719 10,458
Other Revenue Grants 1,915 -6,793
Total 56,924 60,433
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25. GROUP RELATED PARTIES

The Police and Crime Commissioner was required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals
that have the potential to control or influence the Police and Crime Commissioner or to be controlled or influenced by the
Police and Crime Commissioner. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Police and
Crime Commissioner might have been constrained in his ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability ta
limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Police and Crime Commissioner. In this context related parties include;

Central Government

Key Management Personnel including Senior Managers

Close Family Member of Key Management Personnel

Other Public Bodies

Entities Controlled or significantly influenced by the Commissioner

Central Government

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Police and Crime Commissioner — it is responsible

for providing the statutory framework, within which the Police and Crime Commissioner operates, provides the majority of his

funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that he has with other parties (e.g. Precept
Bills). Grants received from government departments are set out in Note 23 and on the face of the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

The Police and Crime Commissioner, Chief Constable and Chief Officers

The Police and Crime Commissioner, Chief Constable and their respective Chief Officers are required to declare whether they or
members of their close family have had any related party transactions (significant dealings} with the Police and Crime
Commissioner or Chief Constable during the financial year. The Chief Finance Officers have written to the Police and Crime
Commissioner, Chief Constable and chief officers to collect this information. In the Chief Finance Officers apinion’s there are no
material related party interests to declare for 2016/17.

26. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including the value of assets acquired
under finance leases and contracts), together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is
to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Police and Crime Commissioner, the expenditure
results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement {CFR}), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by
the Police and Crime Commissioner that has yet to be financed. The movement in the CFR is analysed in the second part of this
note.

2016/17 to 7th May
315t March 2016 2017
£000 £000
Opening Capital Financing Requirement 233,788 226,515
Capital investment
Property, Plant and Equipment {and 'Held for Sale') 16,652 29,079
Intangible Assets 0 153
16,652 29,232
Sources of finance
Capital receipts {5,293} {4,027)
Government grants and other contributions {4,859} {4,418)
Direct revenue contributions {6,500} {4,300)
MRP {Minimum Revenue Proviston) (7,273) {5,570)
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 226,515 237,432
Movement In year 7,273 {10,917)
Explanation of movements in year
Eoe g b e o2 st
Increase/{decrease) in Capital Financing Reqguirement (7,273) {10,917)
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27. LEASES

The Police and Crime Commissioner as Lessee

Operating Leases
The Police and Crime Commissioner occupied a number of leased properties. Rentals paid in 2016/17 to 7/5/17 amounted to
£0.513. Property lease costs will be £0.914 in 2017/18. The maturity profile of the payments is as follows;

2015/16 2016/17 to 7th
May 2017
£000 £000
Not later than one year 726 259
Later than ane year and not later than five years 82 246
Later than five years 106 8
914 513

28. PF1 AND SIMILAR CONTRACTS

2016/17 was the fourteenth year of a Private Finance Initiative (PFI) contract for the construction and maintenance of seventeen
Police stations across the Greater Manchester area. The contractor will operate and service the stations for twenty-five years
after which ownership will revert to the Mayor of Greater Manchester for nil consideration.

Property Plant and Equipment
The stations are recognised on the PCC's balance Sheet. Movements in their value over the year are detailed in the notes to the
accounts.

Payments Due Under PFI Contracts

The Cemmissioner makes an agreed payment each year, which is increased each year by inflation and can be reduced if the
contractor fails to meet availability and performance standards in any year. The commissioner only has the right to terminate
the contact if he compensates the contractor in full for costs incurred and future profits. Payments remaining to be made under
the PFI contract (excluding any estimation of inflation and availability/performance deductions) are as follows:

Payment s Interest Total
for Reimbursement | gopg, £000's
Services of Capital
£000's Expenditure
£000's
Payable 2017/18 4,273 2,181 8,105 14,559
Between 1to 2 years 6,642 1,306 8,218 16,166
Between 2 to S years 15,324 8,845 26,794 50,963
Between 6 to 10 years 29,567 21,221 43,007 93,795
Between 11 to 13 years 20,026 18,685 23,383 62,094
Total 75,832 52,238 109,507 237,577

Although the payments made to the contractor are described as unitary payments, they have been calculated to compensate
the contractor for the fair value of the services they provide, the capital expenditure incurred and the interest payable whilst the
capital expenditure remains to be reimbursed. The liability outstanding to pay the contractor for capital expenditure incurred is
as follows:
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Outstanding liability
The following table shows the outstanding liability to pay the contractor for capital expenditure incurred is as follows;

2015/16 2016/17 to 7th

£000 May 2017 £000

Balance at start of the year 55,655 53,403
Payments during the year {2,252) {1,165)
Balance at the end of the year 53,403 52,238
Shart Term liability 1,073 2,181
Long Term liability 52,330 50,057
Total 53,403 52,238

29. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES

Participation In pension schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of their staff and officers the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief
Constable make contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be
payable until staff and officers retire, the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable have a commitment to make the
payments and this needs to be disclosed at the time that staff and officers earn their future entitlement.

All employees are, unless they have opted out, members of The Greater Manchester Pension Fund which is administered by
Tameside MBC. This is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Police and Crime Commissioner, Chief
Constable and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a leve! intended to balance the pension liabilities with
investment assets.

The Greater Manchester Pension Fund is a defined benefit statutory scheme, administered in accordance with the Local
Government Pension Scheme {Benefits, Membership and Contributions) Regulations 2007, the Local Government Pension
Scheme {Administration) Regulations 2008 and the Local Government Pension Scheme {Transitional Provisions) Regulations
2008. The scheme is contracted out of the State Second Pension. The Investment managers of the fund are Hymans Robertson
LLP.

The principal risks of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the scheme, structural changes to the
scheme (i.e. large-scale withdrawals from the scheme), changes to inflation, bond yields and the performance of the equity
investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory requirements to charge to the General
Fund the amounts required by statute as described in the accounting policies note.

All police officers, unless they have opted out, are members of the Police Pension scheme, an unfunded defined benefit final
salary scheme, meaning that there are no investment assets built up to meet these pensions liabilities, and cash has to be
generated to meet actual pensions payments as they eventually fall due. The scheme can be split into 3 components, old, injury
and new. See note H to the Accounting Policies on page 74. The scheme is contracted out of the State Second Pension. The
Police Pension Fund Account is disclosed on page 84.

Discretionary Post-retirement Benefits

Discretionary post-retirement benefits on early retirement are an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities
are recognised when awards are made. There are no plan assets built up to meet these pension liabilities.

Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits

The costs of retirement benefits are recognised in the reported cost of services when they are earned by staff and officers,
rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge the Police and Crime Commissioner is
required to make against precept is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement
benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been
made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves
Statement during the year:
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Total of Both Schemes

2015/16 | 2016/17
to 7th
May
Reconciliation of Present Value of the Schema 2017
Liabilities {Defined Benefit Obligation) Total All Total All
Schemes Schemes
£000 £000
Opening balance at 1st April 7,779,196 | 6,772,304
Current service cost 146,419 119,751
Interest cost 255,516 262,941
Contributions fram scheme participants 39,078 40,468
Remeasurement {gains) and losses:
Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in demographic | (101,250} | (133,232)
assumptions
Actuarial gains/{losses) arising from changes in financial (703,611} | 1,538,772
assumptions
Other Experience (438,247) (49,413}
Past service cost 776 555
Benefits paid (205,154} | (233,833)
Unfunded Benefits paid (418} {a57)
Closing balance at 31st March/7th May 6,772,304 | 8,317,856

Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet -
The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Group’s abligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows:

| PCC | GMP | Total | _ PCC | GMP | Total
| 2015/16 | 2015/16 | 2015/16 2016/17 | 2016/17 2015717
| to7th | to7th | to7th
| May May May
| 2017 2017 2017
! £000 £000 £000 Reconciliation of Mavements in the Fair Value of £000 £000 £000
| Scheme (Plan) Assets
f 6,144 | 592,091 | 598,235 | Opening fair value of scheme assets 6,418 | 600,562 | 606,980
! 208 | 19,137 | 19,345 | Interest income 259 | 23369 | 23628
I Remeasurement gain/({loss):
(245} | (22,634) | (22,879) | The return on plan assets, excluding the amount 768 | 109,702 | 110,470
included in the net interest expense
215 | 18,420 | 18,635 | Contributions from employer 284 | 20,793 | 21,077
107 6,901 7,008 | Contributions from employees into the scheme 116 7,102 7,218
(11) | (13,353} | (13,364) | Benefits paid {166) | (17,027) | (17,193)
[+] 419 419 | Contribution in respect of unfunded benefits 0 457 457
0 {419) {419) | Unfunded benefits paid 0 {457) {457)
6,418 | 600,562 | 606,980 | Closing falr value of scheme assets 7,679 | 744,501 | 752,18G
Pension Liability
Funded
LGPS | Unfunded
= PCC GMP Total scheme Total
Pensions Liabilities 2016/17 to 2016/17 2016/17 | 2016/17to | 2016/17to
7th May to 7th to 7th 7th May 7th May
2017 May 2017 May 2017 2017
2017
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of the defined benefit obligation {12,548) | (965,878} TB'IBAZG) {7,339,430) | (B,317,856)
Fair value of plan assets 7,678 744,501 752,180 1] 752,180
Sub-total (a,869)1 | (221,377} | (226,246) | (7,339,430) | {7,565,676)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (a,869) | (221,377} | (226,246) | (7,339,430} | (7.,565,676)
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Funded
LGPS | Unfunded
L PCC GMP total scheme Total
Pensions Liabllities 2015/16 2015/16 | 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
E000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of the defined benefit obligation (9,286) | (797,848) | {(807,134) | {5,965,170) | (6,772,304}
Fair value of plan assets 6,418 600,562 606,980 1} 506,980
Sub-total {2,868) | (197,286) | (200,154) | (5,965,170 | {6,165,324)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation {2,868) | (197,286) | {200,154) (5,965,170) | (6,165,324)
Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities {Defined Benefit Obligation}
2016/17 to 7th May 2017
LGPS Police Pension Scheme Group
Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme s SVC ot o Injury 2006 2L ges ez
Liabilities {Defined Benefit Obligation) £000's | £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Opening balance at 1st April 2015 9,286 | 797,848 | 807,134 | 5,574,700 | 167,240 | 173,080 50,150 | 5,965,170 | 6,772,304
Current service cost 343 24,908 25,251 50,110 2,500 | 1,120 40,770 94,500 119,751
Interest cost 374 31,057 31,431 215,150 6,460 | 6,790 l 3,110 231,510 262,941
Contributions from scheme participants 116 7,102 7,218 14,540 o 370 | 18,340 33,250 40,468
Remeasurement [gains) and losses: Y S . 0 0 2 2 2 g
Actuarial gains/(lasses) from demographic 34 2,904 2,938 | (116,060} | (20,130) 20 | 0 | (136,170} | (133,232)
assumption changes |
Actuarial gains/(losses) from financial 2,415 | 147987 | 150,402 | 1,226,940 27,150 83,540 | 50,740 | 1,388,370 | 1,538,772
assumptions changes I
Experience gains and losses arising on the 146 | (28,919) | (28,773) {16,220) {2,290} 230 | (2,360} (20,640) {49,413)
pension liabilities i
Past service cost 0 475 475 0 80 0 0 80 555
Benefits paid (166) | (17,027) | (17,293} | {209,940) | {7,020 {230) {50) | (217,240} | (234,433)
i
,! Transfers in 0 0 0 450 ] 50 100 600 600
i Unfunded Benefits patd 0 {457) (457) 0 0 0 of 0 {as7)
| Closing balance at 31st March 2016 12,548 | 965,878 | 978,426 | 6,739,670 | 173,990 | 264,970 160,800 | 7,339,430 | 8,317,856
2015/16
LGPS Police Pension Scheme Group
Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme | PCC GMP Total oid Infury 2006 2015 Total Total
Liabilities {Defined Benefit Obligation) £000's | £000's £000's £000°s £000°s £000's £000's £000's £000's
Opening balance at 1st April 2015 9,988 | 851,608 | B61,596 | 6,488,930 | 204,960 | 223,710 o | 6,917,600 | 7,779,196
Current service cost 348 28,701 29,049 71,190 6,270 1,570 38,340 117370 146,419
Interest cost 337 27,609 27,946 212,520 6,750 7,420 880 227,570 255,516
Contributions from scheme participants 107 6,901 7,008 16,050 0 330 15,690 32,070 39,078
Remeasurement [gains} and losses: o 0 o o o 0 o a o
Actuarial gains/(losses) from demographic 1] 0 0| {95560) {2,040) {2,870} (780) | (101,250) | (101,250)
assumption changes |
Actuarial gains/{losses) from financial (1,482) | (95,719) } (97,201) | (548,690) | {13,650) | {39,460) {4,610) | (606,410) | (703,611)
assumptions changes
Experience gains and losses arising on the (1) (8,176) | (8,177} | {383,990) | {28,520) | {18,190) 630 | (430,070) | (438,247)
pension liabilities
Past service cost 0 696 696 0 80 0 0 80 776
Benefits paid {11) | (13,353) | (13,364) | (186,880} | (6,610) {180) o | (103,670) | {207,034)
Transfars in 0 0 0 1,130 0 750 0 1,880 1,880
Unfunded Benefits paid 0 {419} {a19) o 0 0 o a {419)
Closing balance at 31st March 2016 9,286 | 797,848 | B07,134 | 5,574,700 167,240 | 173,080 50,150 | 5,965,170 | 6,772,304
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Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised

Falr value of scheme assets

Police and Crime Commissioner for Greater Manchesler
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2015/16 2016/17 to 7th May 2017
= Quoted |

Quoted prices Percentage Quoted Quoted Percentage

prices in notin Total of Total prices in prices not Total of Total
Local Government Pension Scheme assets active active Assets active in active Assets

| comprised markets markets markets markets
£000 £000 £000 % £000 £000 £000 %

Equity Securities:
Consumer 53,451 0 53,451 9% 70,169 D 70,169 9%
Manufacturing 43,989 ] 43,989 7% 71,851 0 71,851 10%
Energy and utilities 32,583 0 32,583 5% 57,470 0 57,470 8%
Financial institutions 58,830 0 58,880 10% 88,257 8] 88,257 12%
Health and care 25,381 ] 25,381 4% 30,974 0 30,974 4%
tnformation technology 13,637 0 13,637 2% 21,833 0 21,933 %
Other 8,000 1] 8,000 1% 14,706 0 14,706 2%
Sub-total Securities 235,921 0 235,921 39% 355,360 0 355,360 47%
Debt Securitias
Corporate Bonds (investment grade) 30,240 li] 30,240 5% 40,956 [1] 40,956 5%
UK Government Bonds 4,812 1] 4,812 1% 11,359 [1] 11,359 2%
Other 18,950 1] 18,950 | 3% 27,273 0 27,273 A%
Sub-total Debt Securities 54,002 o 54,002 | 9% 79,588 o| 79,588 1%
Private equity:

; Al o 15,166 15,166 % 1] 0%
Sub-total private equity L] 15,166 15,166 % 1] 0%
Real Estate:

UX Property 0 19,112 19,112 3% o 0%
Sub-total Real Estate 1] 19,112 19,112 3% 0%
Investment funds and Unit Trusts: |

Equities 169,138 i 0 169,138 28% 216,141 0 216,141 29%
Bonds 47,157 'i o 47,157 8% 61,621 0 61,621 8%
Infrastructure 0| 8135 8,135 1% 0 0 0 0%
Other 11,927 : 29,521 41,448 7% 15,481 0 15,481 2%
Sub-total other investment funds 228,222 37,656 265,878 44% 293,244 0 293,244 39%
Derivatives:

Other 1,598 1,598 0% 0 0 0%

| Sub-total Derivatives 1,598 1,598 0% 0 [ 0 0%
Cash and cash equivalents 15,303 0 15,303 3% 23,988 1] 23,988 3% i

" Sub-total cash and cash equivalents 15,303 0 15,303 3% 23,988 23,988 3%

i
Total assets 535,046 71,034 | 606,980 100% 752,179 0| 752,179 T 200%
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Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the pensions that will
be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels etc. The Local Government scheme has
been assessed by Hymans Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the Local Government Pension Scheme
being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31st March 2013. The Police scheme liabilities have been assessed
by the Government Actuary’s Department (GAD), estimates have being made based on the latest full valuation of 31* March
2012. These estimates have been adjusted by summarised member data and cash flow information for 2015/16 and 2016/17.
The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:

Local Local Police Local Local Palice
Government | Government Pension Government | Government Pension
Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme
PCC GMP PCC GMP
2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 to 2016/17 to 2016/17 to
7th May 7th May 2017 7th May
2017 2017

Mortality assumptions:

Longevity ot 65 for current pensioners:

214 214 23.1 | Men 215 215 232

24.0 240 25.1 | Women 24.1 24.1 25.2
Lopgew‘ry ot 65 for future pensioners:

24.0 240 25.1 | Men 23.7 23.7 252

26.6 26.6 27.2 | Women 26.2 26.2 273
Inflation

2% 3.2% 2.2% | Rate of inflation 3.4% 3.4% 2.4%

3.5% 3.5% 2.5% | Rate of increase in salaries 3.2% 2.5% 4.4%

2.2% 2.2% 2.2% | Rate of increase in pensions 2.4% 2.4% 2.4%

3.6% 3.5% 3.6% | Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.8% 2.7% 2.7%

Sensitivity Analysis Local Government scheme

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table above. The
sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasenably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end
of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions
remain constant.

The longevity, for example assumes that life expectancy increase or decrease for men and women in the practice, this is unlikely
to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimates in the sensitivity analysis have followed
the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The approach taken in
preparing the sensitivity analysis is consistent with that adopted in the previous year.

PCC GMP
Approx Approx
increase Approximate increase
Sensitivity In Local Government Penslon Scheme to pp\!alue to Approximate Value
Employer Employer
Liability LiabHity
% £000 % £000
0.5% decrease/ increase in Real Discount Rate 13% 1,638 12% 117,000
Longevity increase/{decrease) in 1 year: 3to5% 35910598 Ato 5% 27,261 to 46,035
0.5% decrease/ increase in the Salary Increase Rate 3% 359 2% 23,071
0.5% Increase in the Pension Increase Rata 10% 1,249 10% 92,070
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Old Police Scherme 2006 Police Scheme 2015 Police Scheme
Sensitivity In Police Pension Scheme I:';:?:::: A\ra':ur': i::::?:::: A\r;u": tlo A:::::x
Liability Liability EL':;';:;:’

% £000's % £000's % £000's
0.5% decrease/ increase in Real Discount Rate -9.40% | ({631,900) -16.80% {44,500} -16.50% {26,600)
Longevity increase/{decrease) in 1 year: 2.60% 175,800 2.10% 5,600 2.20% 3,500
0.5% decrease/ increase in the Salary Increase 1.10% 70,500 7.50% 19,900 0.00% 0
g.a;:ﬂ Increase in the Pension Increase Rate 8.90% 600,700 10.60% 28,000 | 19.50% 32,000

Impact on the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Cash Flows (Local Government Pansion Scheme Only)

One of the key objectives of the Fund is to deliver a low stable employer contribution rate whilst maintaining the solvency of the
Fund. Funding levels are monitored and contributions rates set vial triennial valuations. The 31" March 2013 disclosed that the
fund was in deficit and that the funds’ assets were equal to 90.5% of the value of the liabilities. Contribution rates have been set
to cover the cost of the future benefits earned by employees and to make good the deficit over a period of time. The effective
date of the next triennial valuation is 31* March 2016 and this is required to be completed by 31* March 2017.

The scheme will need to be take account of significant national changes to be made under Public Pensions Services Act 2013.
Going forward benefits will be based on member average earning over their career rather than their salary at retirement,
however benefits earned up to 31* March 2014 will continue to be based on final salary. Similar changes are also due to be
made to the other main existing public service pension schemes in England and Wales. The Act also introduces measures to
limit the increase in the cost of providing public service pension benefits in future.

The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension scheme by the Police and Crirne Commissioner
and the Chief Constable in the year to 31°" March 2018 are £19.264m. Contributions to the Police scheme for the same period
are expected to be £57.480m.

LGPS PCC Staff LGPS Police Staff
Information about Uabllity Split Weighted Liability Split Weighted
the Defined benefit Average Average
obligation £000 % Duration £000 % Duration
Active members 7,425 59.0% 25.7 547,427 57.0% 24.9
21.0%
Deferred members 2,587 273 183,727 19.0% 25.1
20.0%
Pensioner members 2,536 15.0 234,724 24.0% 12.0
|' Total 12,548 | 100.0% 22.6 965,878 | 100.0% 20.7

Impact on the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Cash Flows {Police Scheme Only)

At the request of the Home Office the Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) carried out an actuarial valuation of the police
pension scheme as at 31st March 2012. The valuation was undertaken in accordance with the Public Service Pensions
{valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation results specify the rate of employer contributions payable for
the four year period from 1st April 2015. The employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed at the next actuarial
valuation to be carried out as at 31st March 2016, with the next revision to the employer contribution rate expected to take
effect from 1st April 2019.
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Old Police Injury Palice New Paolice New Police Scheme
Scheme Scheme Scheme 2006 2015
Information
about the Welghted Weighted Weighted
Defined benefit Average | Uability Liability Average ' Average
obligation Liability Split Curation | Split Split Duration Liability Split Buration
£000's % £000's % £000's % £000's %
95.0
Active members | 2,881,920 | 42.70% 32,940 19.00% | 250,990 % 160,800 100.0%
Deferred
members 206,880 3.00% 0 0.00% | 11,680 4.0% 0 0.0%
Pensioner
members 3,650,870 54.3% 141,050 | 81.00% | 2,300 1.0% 0 0.0%
100.
Total 6,739,670 | 100.0% 20 173,990 | 100.0% | 264,970 0% 38 160,800 100.0% EXd

Readers of the accounts should be aware that the figures in the Statement of Accounts have been prepared for the purposes of
IAS19 only and have no validity in other circumstances. In particular, they are not relevant for calculations undertaken for
funding purposes, for accounting under international accounting standards and for other statutory purposes under UK pension’s
legislation.

30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Police and Crime Commissioner has identified the following contingent liability as at 7" May 2017, a contingent liability is a
potential liability which depends on an uncertain future event accurring:-

The Chief Constable of Greater Manchester, along with other Chief Constables and the Home Office, currently has 823 claims
lodged against them with the Central London Employment Tribunal. The claims are in respect of alleged unlawful discrimination
arising from the Transitional Provisions in the Police Pension Regulations 2015. Claims of unlawful discrimination have also been
made in relation to the changes to the Judiciary and Firefighters Pension Regulations. In the case of the Judiciary claims the
claimants were successful and in the Firefighters case the respondents were successful. Both of these judgements are subject to
appeal, the outcome of which may determine the outcome of the Police claims. The Tribunal has yet to set a date for a
preliminary or substantive Police hearing. Legal advice suggests that there is a strong defence against the Police claims. The
quantum and who will bear the cost is also uncertain, if the claims are partially or fully successful and therefore at this stage it is
not practicable to estimate the financial impact. For these reasons, no provision has been made in the 2016/17 Accounts.

31. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

During the compilation of the 2016/17 accounts some minor amendments to last year's figures have been made, these are
generally rounding and sub- totalling errors. Where changes have been made the title in the column of figures will have within
the title ‘restated’.

32. COLLABORATIONS

The Chief Constable works in collaboration with other forces in order to increase business resilience, efficiency and flexibility to
make budget savings. Collaboration between forces is not new and has generally been defined as “all activity where two or more
parties work together to achieve a common goal, which includes inter-force activity and collabaration with the public and
private sectors, including cutsourcing and business partnering.”

The CIPFA Code of Practice 2016/17 introduces new requirements for the classification of collaborative arrangements based on
International Financial Reporting Standards. Areas where the Chief Constable works with other entities need to be analysed on
the basis of control, influence, governance arrangements, materiality and the rights to share in assets/liabilities. The results of
this analysis drive the accounting arrangements required. The following table shows collaborations that the Chief Constable is
part of that are classified as Joint Operations under the Code. The lead force provides the general management of the operation.
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| Joint Operation Lead force Contribution | Contribution
2015/16 2016/17
£m £m
TITAN - Includes regional asset recovery, intelligence and crime. Merseyside 5.104 6.315

Partners are Greater Manchester, Cheshire, Merseyside,
Lancashire, Cumbria and North Wales. Staff are drawn from these
forces with net costs apportioned between partners based on
government grant allocations. l

UNDERWATER SEARCH - Partners are Greater Manchester, Cheshire 0.345 0.853
Cheshire, Merseyside, Lancashire, Cumbria and North Wales. Net

costs are apportioned between partners based on government

grant allocations.

NORTH WEST MOTORWAY POLICE GROUP Cheshire 0.296 0.03

Partners are Greater Manchester, Cheshire, Merseyside and
Lancashire. Costs are apportioned based on a Service Level
Agreement.

These policing costs are included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

33. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The purpose of this statement is to explain the accounting policies used in compiling the figures shown in the Police and Crime
Commissioner’s [PCC’s) statement of accounts.

A. General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises transactions for the 2016-17 extended financial year and the position at the extended
year-end of 7 May 2017. The PCC is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015These regulations require the Statement of Accounts to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting
practices. For the purposes of these regulations the PCC has the status of a Local Authority.

These practices primarily comprise the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17,
and the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP), supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is primarily historical cost, modified by the revaluation of
certain non-Current Assets and financial instruments.

8. Accounting Concepts
The Statement of Accounts has been prepared in accordance with the following accounting concepts:

Financial information should be relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable;

e  Materiality of information must be considered, i.e. information must be of sufficient significance to justify its inclusion

+ Strict compliance to accounting policy has not been applied where the amounts invalved are not considered to affect a true
and fair presentation of the financial position and transactions of the PCC
Accounting policies have been applied consistently within the year and between this and prior years; and

s The statements have been prepared to reflect the substance of the PCC's transactions over their legal form

Going concern
The accounts are prepared on a going concern basis. This assumes that the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) will continue in

operation for the foreseeable future. The PCC carries out functions essential to the local community and is himself a revenue
raising body {with limits on his revenue raising powers arising only at the discretion of central government). If the PCC were in
financial difficulties, the prospects are thus that alternative arrangements might be made by central government either for the
continuation of the services he provides or for assistance with the recovery of a deficit over more than one financial year. The
abolition of the office of PCC and the transfer of functions to the Mayor does not negate the assumption of going concern.

Qualitative characteristics
The usefulness of financial statements is enhanced if they are comparable. The Code of Practice promotes comparability by

designating the form and content of the financial statements which include a comparison with the previous financial period. The
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2016/17 statements cover an extended financial year from 1% April 2016 to 7*" May 2017 as set out in Article 9 of The Greater
Manchester Combined Authority {Transfer of Police and Crime Commissioner Functions to the Mayor) Order 2017. These
accounts, therefore, do not comply with the requirements of the Code of Practice in relation to the provision of comparative
information. However, the Code of Practice acknowledges the primacy of legislative requirements which is that where an
accounting treatment is required by law, then it must be applied, even if it contradicts any accounting concept or qualitative
characteristic

C. Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year in which it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. Particular
situations are described below:

¢ Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the PCC transfers the significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the PCC.

o Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the PCC can measure reliably the percentage of completion of the
transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the PCC.

» Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are cansumed — where there is a gap between the date supplies are received
and their consumption; they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

» Expenses in relation to services received {including services provided by employees) are recorded as expenditure when the
services are received rather than when payments are made.

* Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income and expenditure on
the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by
the contract.

¢ Revenue and expenditure recognised but cash not received or paid. A debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded
in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue
for the income that might not be collected.

* De minimis level. The level above which individual expenditure/income transactions have been accrued is £5,000.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not more
than 24 hours.

Cash equivalents are non-fixed term investments that are readily convertible to know amounts of cash with insignificant risk of
change in value. In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s cash management.

E. Exceptional Items

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, either on the face of the
comprehensive income and expenditure statement or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are
to aid the understanding of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s financial performance.

F. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors.

Prior period adjustments are the correction of material errors or changes required to reflect changes in accounting policies.
Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and
do not give rise to a prior period adjustment,

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change provides more
reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Police and Crime
Commissioner’s financial positian or financial performance.

Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise} by adjusting opening balances and comparative
amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. If material errors are discovered in a prior period
figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

G. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non-

current assets during the year:

« Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service.

e Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation
Reserve against which the losses can be written off.
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e Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.

The Police and Crime Cammissioner is not required to raise Precept to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or
amortisations. However, he is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in his overall
borrowing requirement equal to a minimum revenue provision {(MRP) amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the
Police and Crime Commissioner in accordance with statutory guidance.

Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General
Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement
for the difference between the two.

H. Employee Benefits

Benefits Payable during Employment

short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They include such benefits as
wages and salaries and paid annual leave for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in
which employees render service to the Police and Crime Commissioner. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements
{or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry
forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting
year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in
the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Police and Crime Commissioner to terminate an
employee’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are
charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate area in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Police
and Crime Commissioner is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an employee, group of group of
employees or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Police and Crime Commissioner to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are
required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but
unpaid at the year-end.

Post-employment Benefits check wording
Police officers and staff are members of two separate pension schemnes:

¢ The Police Pension Scheme administer by the Force on behalf of the Police and Crime Commissioner
¢ The Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by Tameside Council.

Both schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees who worked for
the Police and Crime Commissioner or the Chief Constable. The Police pension scheme administered is an unfunded defined
benefit final salary scheme, meaning that there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions liabilities and cash has to
be generated to meet actual pensions payments as they eventually fall due.

The Police Pension Scheme

The scheme is unfunded. Both the employer and employee pay pension contributions based on a percentage of pensionable

pay into the Pension Fund Account. Pensions are then paid out of the Account. The amounts that must be paid into and out of

the Pension Fund Account are specified by regulation. The Police and Crime Commissioner is liable for any surplus or deficit on

the fund, which is repaid to The Police and Crime Commissioner via a Home Office Grant. There are four elements to Police

Pensions which are account for in the Pension Fund Account;

o The ‘old’ Police pensions scheme open only to police officers in service before 1% April 2006

¢ The ‘new police pension’s scheme open to all officers who entered into service on or after 1* April 2006

s The ‘new police pension’s scheme open to all officers who entered into service on or after 1* April 2015

e A limited number of new entrants after 1% April 2006 as above but the employee cannot take advantage of the ill-health
retirement provisions of the scheme

e In all schemes the Police and Crime Commissioner paid an employer’s contribution and employee paid a contribution too
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Injury awards are not part of the Police Pensions Scheme and are funded direct from the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account not from the Pension Fund Account. However, liabilities in respect of injury awards are disclosed in the
Statement of Accounts as part of the Police and Crime Commissioners overall liability.

The Local Government Pension Scheme

The liabilities of the Greater Manchester pension fund attributable to the Police and Crime Commissioner are included in the
Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method - i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be
made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee
turnover rates, etc., and projections of projected earnings for current employees.

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of the yield available on long dated, high quality
corporate bonds (as measured by the yield on iBoxx Sterling Corporate Index, AA over 15 years) at the valuation date.

The assets of The Greater Manchester pension fund attributable to the Police and Crime Commissioner are included in the
Balance Sheet at their fair value:

¢ Quoted securities — current bid price

* Unguoted securities ~ professional estimate

o Unitised securities — current bid price

» Property — market value.

The change in the net pension’s liability is analysed into seven components:

e Current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year — allocated in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees worked

e Past service cost = the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect relates to years of service
earned in earlier years — debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs

* Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), i.e. net interest expense for The Police and Crime Commissioner —
the change during the period in the net defined liability {asset)that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this is calculated
by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability (asset) at the end of the period — taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability
{asset during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments

Remeasurement comprising:

s The return on plan assets — excluding amounts included in net interest on the defined benefit liability (asset) — charged to
the Pension Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and expenditure

e  Actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not coincided with
assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have update their assumptions - charges to the
Pensions reserve as Qther Comprehensive Income and Expenditure _

» Contributions paid to the Greater Manchester pension fund — cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in
settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable
by the Police and Crime Commissioner to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated
according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are
appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-
end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of
being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Police and Crime Commissioner also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event
of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of
the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension
Scheme.

l. Events after the Balance Sheet Date
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the

reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
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s Conditions existing at the end of the reporting period:
The Statement of Accounts would be adjusted to reflect such events

e Conditions arising after the end of the reporting period:
The Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material
effect, disclosure is made in the notes to the accounts of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts.
J. Financial Instruments

Classification of Financial Instruments
The Pelice and Crime Commissioner's financial assets and liabilities have been classified as follows:

Financial Assets Financial Liabitities
Loans and Receivables at Amortised Cost Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Avaifable for Sale Financial Assets PFl and Finance |ease liabilities

Accounting for Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Police and Crime Commissioner becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised costs.
Annual charges to the financing and investment income and expenditure line, in the CIES for interest payable, are based on the
carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounted estimated
future cash payments over the life of the instrument, to the amount at which it was originally recognised. For simple borrowing
this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable plus accrued interest; and
interest charged to the CIES is the amount payable for the year according the loan agreement.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to the financing and investment
income and expenditure line in the CIES in the year of repurchase/settlement. However, where repurchase has taken place as
part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involved the modification or exchange of existing instruments, the premium or
discount is respectively deducted from or added to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write down to the
CIES is spread over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the EIR.

In respect of all discounts arising after 31* March 2007, the gain is spread over 10 years as required by Regulation. The
reconciliation of amounts charged to the CIES to the net charge required against the General Fund balance is managed by a
transfer to or from the Financial Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Accounting for Financial Assets

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the Police and Crime Commissioner becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their
amortised costs. Annual credits to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES for interest received
are based on carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the EIR for the instrument.

For most of the loans that the Police and Crime Commissioner has made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance
Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable plus accrued interest; and interested credited to the CIES is the amount receivable
for the year in the loan agreement.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due under the contract
will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in
the CIES. The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised
future cash flows discounted at the assets original EIR.

Any gains and losses that arise on derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the financing and investment income and
expenditure line in the CIES.

Available for sale Assets

Available for sale Assets are recognised on the Balance sheet when the Police and Crime Commissioner becomes a party to
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair value. Where the asset has fixed or
determinable payments, annual credits to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES for interest
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receivable are based on the amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the EIR for the instrument. Where there are no fixed or
determinable payments, income (e.g. dividends) is credited to the CIES when it becomes receivable by the Police and Crime
Commissioner.

Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the following; principles:

* Instruments with quoted market prices are value at the market price

+  (Otherinstruments with fixed and determinable payments are value by discounted cashflow analysis

e  Equity shares with no quoted market prices are valued by independent appraisal of company valuations

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the available-for-sale reserve and the gain/ loss is recognised in the surplus or
deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets. The exception is where impairment losses have been incurred: these
are debited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES, along with any net gain or loss for the
asset accumulated in the available-for-sale reserve.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due under the contract
will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair value falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to
the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES. If the asset has fixed or determinable payments, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash
flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair
value against the acquisition cost of the instrument, net of any principal repayment and amortisation.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the financing and investment income
and expenditure line in the CIES, along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in the available-for-sale
reserve. Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost {less any impairment losses}.

K. Foreign currency translation

Where the Police and Crime Commissioner has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the transaction is
converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign
currency are ocutstanding at the year-end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses
are recognised in the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES.

L. Government Grants and Contributions
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and donations are
recognised as due to the Police and Crime Commissioner. when there is reasonable assurance that:

e The Police and Crime Commissioner will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and

o The grants or contributions will be received

Amounts recognised as due to the Police and Crime Commissioner are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied and there is no event
anticipated that would result in those conditions being breached. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future
ecanomic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as
creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue
grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-5Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in
the Comgprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital
expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capita! Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once
they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

M. Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the Police and Crime
Commissioner as a result of past events {e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits
or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Police and Crime Commissioner,
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Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically feasible and is intended to be
completed (with adequate resources being available} and the Police and Crime Commissioner will be able to generate future
economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be
measured reliably as attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred during the development phase (research
expenditure cannot be capitalised). Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or
primarily intended to promote or advertise the Police and Crime Commissioner’'s goods or services.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the assets held by the Police
and Crime Commissioner can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Police
and Crime Commissioner meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an
intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant area in the CIES. An asset Is tested for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the asset might be impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the relevant area in the CIES. Any
gain or |oss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in
the CIES.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, amortisation, impairment losses
and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are
therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

N. Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantialiy all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for ciassification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for payment are accounted
for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.

The Police and Crime Commissioner as Lessee

Finance Leases

Property Plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the commencement of the lease
as its fair value measured at the lease’s inception {or the Present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset
recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to the pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Police and Crime
Commissioner are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down
the lease liability. Contingent rents are charges as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

e A change for the acquisition of the interest in the property , plant or equipment, applied to write down the lease liability on
the Balance Sheet, and

e A finance charge, debited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

The Police and Crime Commissioner is not required to raise Precept to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses
arising on lease assets instead a prudent annual contribution (the minimum revenue provision) is made from revenue funds
towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and
impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjust Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an expense of the
services benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life
of the lease; even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the
lease).
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The Police and Crime Commissioner as Lessor

Finance leases

Where the Police and Crime Commissioner grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the relevant
asset is written out of the balance sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in
the balance sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale} is written off to the other operating
expenditure line in the Comprehensive tncome and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain,
representing the Police and Crime Commissioner's net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the
carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by z lease (long term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

» a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, applied to write down the lease debtor on the Balance Sheet
{together with any premiums received), and

e finance income, credited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not permitted by statute to increase
the General Fund balance and is required to be treated as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted
out of the General Fund balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the amount
due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the
General Fund balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals
are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write down the lease dehtor. At this
point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve,

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against the Precept, as the cost of fixed assets is fully provided for under
separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the
General Fund balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Operating Leases

Where the Police and Crime Commissioner grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset
is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not
match the pattern of payments {e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income.

De minimis
Leases with an annual rental of £100,000 or less or a life up to 6 years will be classified as operating leases.

0. Overheads and Support Services
The costs of overheads and support services are included in the Cost of Policing Services line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

P. Property, Plant and Equipment
These are assets having physical substance and being held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to
others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year.

Recognition

Assets are recognised in Property, Plant and Equipment on an accruals basis, at cost, provided that it is probable an economic
benefit will flow to The Police and Crime Commissioner and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that
maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential {ie repairs and
maintenance} is charged as an expense when it is incurred. Assets fall into one of the operational or development categories as
follows:

¢ Other Land and Building

s Vehicles, Plant, Furniture & Equipment

e Assets under Construction

e Surplus assets {which includes assets awaiting development)
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The Police and Crime Commissioner has a £20,000 deminimis limit for the recognition of Capital Expenditure, except for vehicles
which are all capitalised.

Initial Measurement )
Items which are capitalised are recognised at the cost of bringing the asset to its current location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition does not have
commercial substances (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cashflows of the Police and Crime Commissioner). In the latter
case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the
Police and Crime Commissioner.

Measurement after Recognition

All assets are showing in the Balance Sheet at their net book value. Properties are valued in accordance with the Rovyal
Institution of Charger Surveyors (RICS} Appraisal and Valuations Standards {commonly known as the Red Book) and the IFRS
Code of Practice. All land and property assets are valued at least every five years in line with our rolling valuation programme.
The valuations are carried out by a qualified member of RICS.

Assets are then carried in the balance sheet using the following measurement bases:
e  Assets under construction <historical cost
e  All other assets — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use (existing use
value - EUV)
Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the spécialist nature of an asset, depreciated replacement
cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value. For non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values {or both), for
example vehicles, depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for fair value.

Assets included in the balance sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly, as a minimum every five years, to ensure
that their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end. Increases in valuations are matched
by credits to the revaluation reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by:
»  where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the revaluation reserve, the carrying amount of the asset
is written down against that balance {up to the amount of the accumulated gains)
&  Where there is no balance in the revaluation reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is
written down against the relevant service line(s) in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement

The revaluation reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal implementation.
Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the capital adjustment account.

Capitalisation of Interest
The Police and Crime Commissioner has a general policy of not capitalising interest costs in respect of the construction of non-
current assets. The Police and Crime Commissioner will consider capitalisation of interest should the need arise.

Impairment

Assets are assessed each year as to whether there are indications that an asset may be impaired. Where reliable and consistent
indications exist and differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this
is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:
e where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the revaluation reserve, the carrying amount of the asset
is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains)
e where there is no balance in the revaluation reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is
written down against the relevant service line(s} in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been
charged if the loss had not been recognised
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Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their depreciable
amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life {i.e. freehold 1and) and
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

® buildings — straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as estimated by the valuer, typically averaging to
about 50 years for componentised assets and 99 years for other properties

. Plant, furniture and equipment — straight-line allocation over the useful life of the asset, typically averaging to 5 years
although a small number of assets up to 15 years

. Vehicles — straight-line allocation over the useful life of the asset deemed to be 5 years with a 10% residual value

Where an item of property, plant and equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value depreciation charged on
assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the
Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Disposals and non-current assets held for sale
Assets are recognised as Held for Sale when it becomes probable that their future economic benefit will be recovered primarily
through a sale transaction. Assets held for Sale are assets where the:

e Assetis immediately available for sale

e Saleis highly probable

e Assetis actively marketed

e Saleis expected to be complete within 12 manths

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an asset held for sale. The asset is revalued immediately before
reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent
decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the other operating expenditure line in the comprehensive income
and expenditure statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised losses in the
surplus or deficit on provision of services. Depreciation is not charged on assets held for sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified back to non-current assets and
valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale (adjusted for depreciation, amortisation
or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale} and their recoverable amount at
the date of the decision not to sell. Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether property,
plant and equipment or assets held for sale} is written off to the other operating expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals {if any) are credited to the same line
in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the
carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve
are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal of £10,000 or more are categorised as capital receipts, are credited to the Capital Receipts
Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Police and Crime Commissioner’s
underlying need to borrow {the capital financing requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the reserve from the General Fund
balance in the movement in reserves statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against Precept, as the cost of fixed assets is fully provided for under separate
arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund
balance in the movement in reserves statement.

For a component to be separately identified it must meet the following criteria:-
e The entire assets current book value must be greater than £500k

¢ The components value must be at least 20% of the assets gross book value
e The components expected useful life must be 20% or less than the expected useful life of the asset
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Major component categories have been identified as:

Component ; No. of Years
Building 50
Roof and External | 40
Plant and Services | 20

Asset Components are derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected. The gain or loss arising
from de-recognition is included in ‘Other operating expenditure’ as a loss on disposal, generally speaking the component is
replaced.

Q. Private Finance Initiatives (PFI) and Similar Contracts

PFI and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for making available the property, plant
and equipment needed to provide the services passes to the PFI contractor. As the Police and Crime Commissioner is deemed to
control the services that are provided under his PFl schemes, and as ownership of the property, plant and equipment will pass to
the Police and Crime Commissioner at the end of the contracts for no additional charge, the Police and Crime Commissioner
carries the assets used under the contracts on his Balance Sheet as part of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The original recognition of these assets at fair value (based on the cost to purchase the property, plant and equipment) is
balanced by the recognition of a liability for amounts due to the scheme operator to pay for the capital investment. When
establishing the recognition point of an asset, the Police and Crime Commissioner considers when probable and future benefits
of the asset will flow to it and the extent to which the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

PFI and similar contracts recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way as property, plant and
equipment owned by the Police and Crime Commissioner.

The amounts payable to the PFl operators each year are analysed into the following elements:

Fair value of the services received during the year — debited to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

Finance costs - an interest charge on the outstanding Balance Sheet liability, debited to the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Contingent Rents — Increases in the amount to be paid for the property arising during the contract, debited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Payment towards liability — applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards the PFI operator {the profile of write-
downs is calculated using the same principles as for a finance lease)

Lifecycle replacement costs — proportion of the amounts payable is posted to the 8alance Sheet as a prepayment and then
recognised as additions to Property, Plant and Equipment when the relevant works are eventually carried out.

R. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Police and Crime Commissioner a legal or constructive
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, the Police and Crime Commissioner may be involved in a court case that
could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement in
the year that the Police and Crime Commissioner becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at
the Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are
reviewed at the end of each financial year; where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be
required (or a lower settiement than anticipated is made); the provision is reversed and credited back to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.
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Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another party (e.g. from an
insurance claim), this is only recognised as income if it Is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Police and
Crime Commissioner settles the obligation.

S. Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Police and Crime Commissioner a possible obligation
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within his control.
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.

T. Coantingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Police and Crime Commissioner a possible asset whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the contro! of The
Police and Crime Commissioner. Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

U. Reserves

The Police and Crime Commissioner sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies.
Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund balance in the movement in reserves statement. When
expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in
that year to score against the surplus or deficit on the provision of services. The reserve is then appropriated back into the
General Fund balance in the movement in reserves statement so that there is no net charge against Precept for the expenditure.
The Chief Constable may access amounts held in reserves with the agreement of the Police and Crime Commissioner.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments, retirement benefits
and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Police and Crime Commissioner. These reserves are
explained in the relevant notes.

V. Value Added Tax (VAT)
VAT is included within the accounts only to the extent that it is irrecoverable and therefore charged to revenue or capital
expenditure as appropriate.

W. Precept
Precept income is accounted for as an agency arrangement. Billing authorities act as agents by collecting precept on behalf of
the Police and Crime Commissioner with their own council tax.

X. Heritage assets

Heritage assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved in trust for future generations because of their cultural,
environmental or historical associations. The only heritage asset held by the Police and Crime Commissioner is the eontents of
the Newton Street museum. As the value of the exhibits is de minimis no separate heritage asset entry has been made in the
accounts. Further information on the museum can be found by visiting the museum website at http://www.gmpmuseum.com
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THE POLICE PENSION FUND ACCOUNT

The scheme is an unfunded pension scheme. Both employers and employees pension contributions are based percentage of
pay, which is paid into the Pension Fund. The amounts that must be paid into and out of the Pension Fund are specified by the
Police Pension Fund Regulations 2007 and do not include injury awards.

Restated Extended
Year ended Year ended
31st March 7th May

2016 2017
£000 £000
Contributions receivable
from Police & Crime Commissioner
(49,780) contributions at 21.3% of pensionable pay (52,650)
(1,768) early retirements (2,562)
(11) other (contributions from the Territorial Army) {5)
(32,078} | Officers’ contributions (33,818)
Transfers in
(1,881) transfers in from other Police & Crime Commissioners & other schemes {609}
Benefits payable
143,081 pensions 163,381
41,6591 commutations & lump sum retirement benefits 50,317
Payments to & on account of leavers
1,572 individual transfers out to other Police & Crime Commissioners & other 152
schemes
24 refunds of contribution 23
(56) other (tax & interest) 131
100,794 | Net amount payable for the year 124,360
(6,777) Additional 2.9% funding payable by the Police and Crime Commissioner to
' meet the deficit for the year {7,168)
{94,017) | Additional contribution from the Police & Crime Commissioner {117,192)
0 | Balance at year end 0

The 2016 comparator has been restated to disclose separately the additional 2.9% funding payable by the Police and Crime
Commissioner.

Contribution rates

- '0ld’ scheme

1.4.2006

1.4.2015

- 'New’ schemes:

- 'New' schemes:

Between 14.25 and 15.05%

Between 11% and 12.75%

Between 12.44% and
13.78%

2015/16 2016/17

% %

Employer 24.20% 24.20%
Employee:

Between 14.25 and 15.05%

Between 11% and 12.75%

Between 12.44% and 13.78%
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NOTES TO THE POLICE PENSION FUND ACCOUNT

1.

2.

3,

10.

The Fund was established under the Police Pension Fund Regulations 2007 (S| 2007 no. 1932} and is administered and
managed by the Chief Constable on behalf of the Police and Crime Commissioner.

The Police Pension scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme. There are no investment assets. The fund is balanced to
nil each year by a transfer from the Police and Crime Commissioner which he reclaims from central government.

The Fund receives contributions from the Police and Crime Commissioner as the employer and from scheme members based
on a percentage of pensionable pay set nationally by the Home Office and subject to triennial revaluation by the
Government Actuary’s Department. See the contribution rates table above. At the last revaluation the employer's
contribution was reduced by 2.9% from 24.2% to 21.3%. However, the effective rate remains at 24.2% as the saving has been
recovered by central government.

Benefits payable to scheme members are made from the Fund with the exception of injury awards which are payable by the
Police and Crime Commissioner. Administrative costs are met by the Police and Crime Commissioner. Inward transfer values
are paid into the Fund and outward transfer values are paid from the Fund.

The fund is balanced to zero each year. If income to the fund exceeds expenditure then the excess is paid to the Police and
Crime Commissioner. If expenditure exceeds income then the Police and Crime Commissioner must fund the deficit. The
Police and Crime Commissioner pays any excess income to the Home Office and receives Police Pension Fund top up grant
from the Home Office to fund any deficit.

The contributions receivable from the Police and Crime Commissioner shown in the account are debited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The additional contribution from the Police and Crime Commissioner is
debited in his accounts together with a matching grant from the Home Office.

The amount of Home Office grant outstanding at 7*" May 2017 has been accrued and is shown in the Police and Crime
Commissioner’s Balance Sheet.

The Fund’s financial statements do not take into account liabilities to pay pensions after 7" May 2017. Liabilities to pay
future payments are included in the 14519 charges and notes to the Police and Crime Commissioners Financial Statements.

The Fund’s Accounting Policies are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Accounts.

Following a consultation exercise a new pension scheme has been introduced for Police Officers based on Career Average
Revalued Earnings {CARE). All officers recruited on or after 1/4/2015 will become members of the 2015 scheme and all
earlier schemes have been closed to new members from that date. Members of the older schemes will either be fully
protected if they were within 10 years of retirement, or transfer to the 2015 scheme on different tapering dates up to
31/3/2022 subject to individual circumstances around age and remaining length of service.
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GLOSSARY

A

Accounting Policies — within the range
of possible methods of accounting, a
statement of the actual methods
chosen locally and used to prepare
these accounts.

Accruals — the method of including
amounts in accounts to cover income or
expenditure  attributable to an
accounting period but for which
payment has not been received or
made by the end of the accounting
period. This is based on the concept
that income and expenditure are
recognised as they are earned or
incurred, not as money is received or
paid.

Actuarial Remeasurements — Actuaries
assess financial and non-financial
information provided by The Police and
Crime Commissioner to project levels of
future pension fund requirements.
Changes in actuarial deficits or
surpluses can arise, leading to a loss or
gain because:-

e events have not coincided with the
actuarial assumptions made for the
last valuation

s the actuarial
changed

assumptions have

Adjustment between accounting basis
and funding basis - these are
adjustments that are made to the total
comprehensive income and
expenditure recognised by The Police
and Crime Commissioner in the year in
accordance with proper accounting
practice to the resources that are
specified by statutory provisions as
being available to The Police and Crime
Commissioner to meet future capital
and revenue expenditure.

AGMA  (Association of Greater
Manchester Authorities}] - AGMA
represents the ten local authorities in
Greater Manchester and works in
partnership with Central Government,
regional bodies and other Greater
Manchester public sector hodies.

Asset — something of value which is
measurable in monetary terms.

Assets Held for Sale - Assets which are
being actively marketed and expected
to sell within the next 12 months.

Authorised Limit — this represents the
legislative limit on the Police and Crime
Commissioners’s external debt under
the Local Government Act 2003.

B

Bad {and doubtful) debts — debts which
may be uneconomic to collect or un-
enforceable.

Balances — the reserves of the Police
and Crime Commissioner, both revenue
and capital, which represent the
accumulated surplus of income over
expenditure on any of the funds

Balance sheet - a statement of the
recorded assets, liabilities and other
balances at the end of an accounting
period.

C

Capital Adjustment Account (CAA) -
The balance on this Account represents
timing differences between the amount
of the historical cost of non-current
assets that has been consumed and the
amount that has been financed in
accordance with statutory
requirements.

Capital Expenditure — expenditure on
the acquisition of a non-current asset or
expenditure, which adds to and not
merely, maintains the value of an
existing non-current assets.

Capital Financing Requirement — this is
a measure of the Police and Crime
Commissioner's underlying need to
borrow to finance his capital
investments. The requirement is
calculated from the balance sheet.

Capital Financing Charges - this is the
annual charge to the revenue account
in respect of interest and principal
repayments, together with leasing
rentals.

Capital Grants — Grants received
towards capital expenditure either
generally or for a particular project.

Capital Grants Unapplied - proceeds
received from Government Grants,
Other Grants and Contributions, which
have not yet been used to finance
capital expenditure.

Capital Receipts — monies received
from the sale of assets, which may be
used to finance new capital expenditure
or to repay outstanding loan debt, but
cannot be used to support revenue
expenditure,

Carrying Amount - the balance sheet
value recorded of an asset or a liability.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - this
comprises cash in hand, cash
overdrawn and short-term investments,
which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash.

Cash Flow - movement in money
received and paid by the Police and
Crime Commissioner in the accounting
period.

CIPFA (The Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy) -
CIPFA is the leading professional
accountancy body for public services.

Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure  Statement -  this
statement  details income and

expenditure relating to the Police and
Crime Commissioner as a whole, and
the source of funding for all his
expenditure.

Consolidated - added together with
adjustments to avoid double counting
of income, expenditure or to avoid
exaggeration e.g. debtors, creditors as a
result of trading between the Greater
Manchester Police force and the Police
and Crime Commissioner, which are
reported on as a whole in the Group
Accounts

Contingent Assets — potential assets at
the balance sheet date which depend
on the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events.
The assets should be included in the
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balance sheet where it is probable that
a loss will be incurred which can be
estimated reasonably accurately at the
time the accounts are prepared.
Otherwise, where the contingencies are
likely to be material, the fact that they
exist are disclosed as a note to the
accounts.

Contingent  Liabilities = potential
liabilities at the balance sheet date
which depend on the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events. The liabilities
should be included in the balance sheet
where it is probable that a loss will be
incurred which can be estimated
reasonably accurately at the time the
accounts are prepared. Otherwise,
where the contingencies are likely to be
material, the fact that they exist are
disclosed as a note to the accounts.

Creditors — amounts owed by the Police
and Crime Commissioner for work
done, goods received or services
rendered where payment has not been
made by the balance sheet date.

Current Assets - An asset where the
value changes because the volume held
varies from day to day, for example,
stock. It is reasonable to expect that
these assets will either be consumed or
realised during the next accounting
period.

Current Liabilities = An amount which
will become payable or could be called
in within the next accounting period.

Current Service Cost — The increase in
the present value of a defined benefit
pension scheme’s liahilities expected to
arise from employee services in the
current financial year. It is the ultimate
pension  benefits  “earned” by
employees in the current vyear's
employment which will eventually
entitle them to received pension
henefits when they arise.

Curtailment — For a defined benefit
pension scheme, an event that reduces
the expected years of future service of
present employees or reduces the
accrual of defined benefits for a
number of employees for some or all of
their future service.

D

Debtors — amounts due to the Police
and Crime Commissioner that relate to
the accounting period and have not
been received by the balance sheet
date.

Deferred Capital Receipts — amounts
derived from asset sales, which will be
received in instalments over a period of
years.

Defined Benefit Scheme - this is a
pension or other retirement benefit

scheme other than a defined
contribution scheme. Usually, the
scheme rules define the benefits

independently of the contributions
payable and the benefits are not
directly related to the investment of the
scheme. The scheme may be funded or
unfunded (including notionally funded).

Depreciation — the measure of the
wearing out, consumption or other
reduction in the useful economic life of
a non-current asset.

E

Earmarked Reserves - these reserves
represent the monies set aside that can
only be used for a specific usage or
purpose.

Exceptional Items - material items
deriving from events or transactions
that fall within the ordinary activities of
The Police and Crime Commissioner,
but which need to be separately
disclosed by virtue of their size and/ or
incidence to give a fair presentation of
the accounts.

Expenditure — costs incurred by the
Police and Crime Commissioner for
goods received services rendered or
other value consumed during the
accounting period, irrespective of
whether or not any movement of cash
has taken place.

External Audit - The independent
examination of the activities and
accounts of [ocal autherities to ensure
the accounts have been prepared in
accordance with legislative

requirements and proper practices and
to ensure The Police and Crime
Commissioner has made proper
arrangements to secure value for
money in its use of resources.

F

Fair Value - the price at which an asset
could be exchanged in an arm’s length
transaction, less any grants receivable
towards the purchase or use of an
asset.

Finance Lease - a lease that transfers
the risks and rewards of ownership of a
non-current asset to the lessee. Such a
transfer of risks and rewards may be
presumed to occur if at the inception of
the lease the present value of the
minimum lease payments, including any
initial payment, amount to substantially
all the fair value of the leased asset.

Financial Instruments — any contract
that gives rise to a financial asset of one
entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another.

Financial Instrument  Adjustment
Account - provides a balancing
mechanism between the different rates
at which gains and losses (such as
premiums on the early repayment of
debt) are recognised under IFRS and are
required by statute to be met from the
General Fund.

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost -
the balance Sheet value of the liability,
usually a foan, after taking account of
future changes in the internal rate
payable on the liability.

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value — the
balance sheet value of the liability,
usually a loan, after taking account of
adjustments to reflect fair value at the
balance sheet date.

Financial Regulations — these are the
written code of procedures approved
by The Police and Crime Commissioner,
intended to provide a framework for
proper financial management.

G

Government support/grants =
assistance by Government and inter-
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government agencies and similar
bodies, whether local, national or
international, in the form of cash or
transfer of assets in return for past or
future compliance with  certain
conditions relating to the activities of
the Police and Crime Commissioner.

GMCA (Greater Manchester Combined
Authority} — the GMCA assumed its
powers on 1* April 2011 and took over
functions previously the responsibility
of the Greater Manchester Integrated
Transport Authority (GMITA).

H

Historical Cost - the actual cost of
assets, goods or services, at the time of
their acquisition.

Impairment — the amount by which
stated capital is reduced by quality and
value. Examples include evidence of
obsolescence or physical damage to an
asset.

Income - amounts due to the Police
and Crime Commissioner in respect of
services performed or grants receivable
during the accounting period,
irrespective of whether or not any
movement of cash has taken place.

Intangible Assets - are defined as assets
that are not physical in nature.

International Accounting Standard 19
{IAS 19) — 1AS 19 sets out the treatment
of pensions and other forms of
retirement benefits in an organisation’s
statutory accounts.

International  Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) - a set of international
financial accounting standards stating
how particular types of transactions
and other events should be reported in
financial statements. IFRS are issued by
the International Accounting Standards
Board to make international
comparisons as easy as possible.

Inventories - raw materials and
consumable items which The Police and
Crime Commissioner has procured to
use on a continuing basis and have not

been used by the end of the accounting
period.

Investments - items such as company
shares, other securities and money
deposited with financial institutions
(other than bank current accounts),

L

Leasing — a method of acquiring the use
of an asset by paying a rental for a
specified period of time, rather than
purchasing it outright.

Liahilities — amounts due to individuals
or organisations, which will have to he
paid at some time in the future.

Loans and Recejvables - financial
assets that will not be traded and
where amounts due to the Police and
Crime Commissioner are known. These
assets arise when money, goods or
services are provided to an external
organisation or individual customers.

M

Material - the concept that any
omission from or inaccuracy in the
statements of account should not be
large  enough to  affect the
understanding of those statements by a
reader.

Minimum Revenue Provision {(MRP) -
the Police and Crime Commissioner is
required by statute to set aside
minimum revenue provision for the
redemption of external debt. The
method of calculating the provision is
also defined by statute.

Movement in Reserves Statement - the
movement in the year on the different
reserves held by The Police and Crime
Commissioner, analysed into ‘usable
reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied
to fund expenditure or reduce local
taxation) and other reserves.

N

Net Book Value — the amount at which
non-current assets are included in the
balance sheet, i.e. their historical cost
or current value less the cumulative
amounts provided for depreciation.

Net Current Replacement Cost - the
cost of replacing or recreating the
particufar asset in its existing condition
and in its existing use, that is, the cost
of its replacement or of the nearest
equivalent asset adjusted to reflect the
current condition of the existing asset.

Net Debt - The Police and Crime
Commissioner’s borrowing less cash
and liquid resources.

Net Realisable Value - the open market
value of the asset in its existing use (or
open market value in the case of non-
operational assets), less the expenses
to be incurred in realising the asset.

Non-Current Assets — assets which
have value to The Police and Crime
Commissioner for more than one year.
These can be tangible (e.g. land,
buildings, equipment) or intangible {e.g.
Software or licences) assets.

Non-Operational Assets — non-current
assets held by the Police and Crime
Commissioner but not directly
occupied, used or consumed in the
delivery of services. Examples of non-
operational assets are investment
properties and assets that are surplus
to requirements pending sale or
redevelopment.

0

Operating lease — a lease where the
risks and rewards of ownership of a
non-current asset remain with the
lessor. Such a lease will be for a fixed
period, which is significantly less than
the useful economic life of the asset.

Operational assets — non-current assets
occupied, used or consumed by the
Police and Crime Commissioner in
direct delivery of his services.

P

Payments in Advance - amounts
actually paid in an accounting period
prior to the period in which they are
due

Pension Strain — pension strain arises
when an employee retires early without
actuarial reduction of pension.
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Post Balance Sheet Event -events both
favourable and unfavourable which
occur between the balance sheet date
and the date on which the financial
statements are approved

Precept - an amount Levied by The
Police and Crime Commissioner on the
Local Electorate which is collected on
his behalf by a billing authority e.g.
Manchester City Council.

Premium/ Premia - where the
prevailing current interest rate is lower
than the fixed rate of a long term loan,
which is being repaid early, the lender
can charge the borrower a premium,
the calculation being based on the
difference between the two interest
rates over the remaining years of the
loan, discounted back to present value.
The lender may charge the premium, as
their investment will now earn less than
when the original loan was taken out.

Prior Year Adjustments — material
adjustments to the accounts of earlier
years arising from changes in
accounting policies or from the
correction of fundamental errors. They
do not include normal recurring
corrections or  adjustments of
accounting estimates made in prior
years.

Private Finance Initiative (PFl) - a
Central Government initiative which
aims to increase the level of funding
available for public services by
attracting private sources of finance.
The PFl is supported by a number of
incentives to encourage Authorities’
participation.

Provisions — amounts set aside in the
accounts for liabilities or losses which
are certain or very likely to occur but
where there is uncertainty as to the
amounts involved or the dates on which
they will arise.

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) - a
central Government agency, which
lends money to local authorities at
lower, rates than those generally
available from the private sector. Local
authorities are able to borrow a
proportion of their requirements to

finance capital expenditure from this
source.

R

Receipts in Advance - amounts actually
received in an accounting period prior
to the period in which they are due.

Reporting Standards — the Code of
Practice prescribes the accounting
treatment and disclosures for all normal
transactions of a Local Commissioner. It

is based on International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS),
International Standards (IAS) and
International Financial Reporting

Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) plus
UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice {GAAP) and Financial Reporting
Standards (FRS).

Reserves - amounts set aside in the
accounts to meet expenditure which
the Police and Crime Commissioner
may decide to incur in future periods,
but not allocated to specific liabilities
which are certain or very likely to occur.
Earmarked reserves are allocated to a
specific purpose or area of spending.

Revaluation Reserve - this reserve
shows the accumulated gains on the
non-current assets held by The Police
and Crime Commissioner arising from
upwards revaluations due to factors
such as inflation on asset by asset basis.
Any downwards revaluation will initially
be charged to the revaluation reserve if
one exists for that asset.

Revenue Contributions — the method of
financing capital expenditure directly
from revenue.

Revenue Expenditure - day to day
expenses, mainly salaries and wages,
and general running costs.

Revenue Support Grant {RSG) - a
central Government grant paid to each
Police and Crime Commissioner to help
to finance his general expenditure, The
distribution of the grant between
authorities is intended to allow the
provision of similar standards of service
throughout the country for a similar
tevel of local taxation.

S

Service Reporting Code of Practice
{SeRCOP) - prepared and published by
CIPFA , the Service Reporting Code of
Practice  (SeRCOP} replaced the
previous Best Value Accounting Code of
Practice (BVACOP). It is reviewed
annually to ensure that it develops in
line with the needs of modern Local
Government, Transparency, Best Value
and public services reform. SeRCOP
establishes proper practices with regard
to consistent financial reporting for
services and in England and Wales, it is
given legislative backing by regulations
which identify the accounting practices
it propounds as proper practices under
the Local Government Act 2003.

T

Temporary Loans - this represents
money borrowed for an initial period of
less than one year.

Treasury Management — this is the
process by which The Police and Crime
Commissioner controls his cash flow
and borrowing and lending activities.

Treasury Management Strategy (TMS)
- a strategy prepared with regard to
legislative and CIPFA requirements
setting out the framework for treasury
management activity for the Police and
Crime Commissioner.

W

Work In Progress - the cost of work
done up to a specified date on an
uncompleted project

Police and Crime Commissioner for Greater Manchester
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2016-2017

1.1

1.2

13

1.4

1.5

21

2.2

23

24

2.5

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Police and Crime Commissioner’s primary responsibility is to secure an efficient and effective policing service for
everyone in the Greater Manchester Police (GMP) area and to hold the Chief Constable to account for the exercise of his
functions and those of persons under his control. This ensures that the organisation’s business {which for this purpose
includes the direct activity of each organisation as well as all the functions of GMP) is conducted in accordance with the
law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used economically,
efficiently and effectively.

The Chief Constable of GMP is responsible for the direction and control of GMP and in discharging his function shall have
regard to the Commissioner’s Police and Crime Plan 2014-2017. The Chief Constable is responsible for ensuring GMP's
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards and that public money is safeguarded.

In discharging their overall responsibilities, the Commissioner and Chief Constable are responsible for establishing and
maintaining appropriate risk management processes, governance arrangements and ensuring that there is a sound
system of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of their functions.

This statement has been prepared for the 2016-2017 financial year to state the Commissioner's current governance
arrangements, to report on their effectiveness during the year, and to outline future actions planned to further enhance
the arrangements.

Statements of Assurance underpin this Annual Governance Statement and they have been signed by the Monitoring
Officer, and the Section 151 Officer (Chief Finance Officer). These statements are attached as Annexes to this document.

THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values by which the Commissioner
directs and controls the conduct of business and the activities through which the organisations account to and engage
with the community. The framework enables the Commissioner to monitor the achievements of their strategic objectives
and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services, including
achieving value for money.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable and
foreseeable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.

The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify the risks to the achievement of the
Commissioner’s policies, aims and objectives, and to manage them effectively, efficiently and economically; to evaluate
the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised. The Commissioner aims to provide a
reasonable assurance of the effectiveness of the control systems GMP employs on his behalf.

The detailed controls outlined below represent those in place at 31 March 2017, and up to the date of approval of the
Statement of Accounts and, subject to comments at section 5 concerning areas for improvement, accord with proper
practice.

Although the Chief Constable is responsible for operational policing matters, the direction and control of police personnel
and for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of GMP, the Commissioner is required to hold him to
account for the exercise of those functions and those of the persons under his direction and control. It therefore follows
that the Commissioner must satisfy himself that GMP has appropriate mechanisms in place for the maintenance of good
governance, and that these operate in practice,
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2.6 This statement is informed by assurances relating to the seven principles of the CIPFA Framework, Delivering Good
Governance, and by audit and inspection opinions. The seven CIPFA core principles were updated following the changes

in 2016:
A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, respecting the rule of law
B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement
C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits
D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes
E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management
G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective accountability

2.7 Greater Manchester Police will produce their own Annual Governance Statement as part of their Annual Statement of

Accountls.

2.8 In 2014 CIPFA and IFAC? published an International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector. The structure of
the International Framework, and the care principles, are summarised below.

29

Achieving the Intended Outcomes
While Acting in the Public Interest at all Times

G. Implermenting good (&, Defining outcomes
practlces in transparency, In lerms of sustainab o
reparting, and audit, lo sconomic, socia’, and
de lver effective environmental benefits
accouritabiity

3 "'1“5. ‘ Behaving with T,
e ;‘Ji egrity, demanstrating
= ‘£ streng commilment to ethica, %
e va.ues, and 1especting
the rza of

E
I
| J

F. Managing risks } ! D. totermining the
and performance Mmum;",a B. Ensuring opannass nterventions necessary
" robust Intomnal controf=" and comprcheasive {0 optimize the
 anhd streng pubie stakeho der engagemant achiavemont of the
financizi managemant i Intended cutcomes
i

'I"'.\':“'\---.I|1 E.
. Dave oping the
entity's capacity,
including the capability
of itz ieadership and tha
individua s within It

Principles A and B permeate implementation of principles C to G. The diagram also illustrates that good governance is dynamic,
and that an entity as a whole should be committed to improving governance on a continuing basis through a process of

evaluation and review.

? International Federation of Accountants
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3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

RELIABILITY FINANCE REPORTING AND INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Financial controls exist to ensure that all resources are used as efficiently and effectively as possible to achieve the
Commissioner’s overall objectives and financial targets. Internal financial control systems are in place to minimise the risk
of loss, unlawful expenditure or poor value for money, and to maximise the use of the Commissioner’s assets and limited
resources.

The Commissioner’s financial management framework follows national and/or professional best practice and its key
elements are set out below:

=  Financial Regulations establish the principles of financial control. They are designed to ensure that the Commissioner
conducts his financial affairs in a way which complies with statutory provision and reflects best professional practice.
Contract Standing Orders set out the rules to be followed in respect of contracts for the supply of goods and services.

* The Commissioner's scheme of governance is designed to ensure that responsibility and accountability for resources
rest with local financial managers who are responsible for service provision.

e The Commissioner has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management requiring him to approve an
annual treasury management strategy including an annual investment strategy.

e The GMP’s three year financial planning is conducted under the Strategic Financial Outlook. This ‘affordability’
exercise aims to determine the financial requirements over the medium term at a strategic level and is reviewed
annually.

e The Strategic Financial Qutlook includes full provision for contractual inflation, known commitments, indicative
funding announcements and other expenditure items which the Commissioner and Chief Constable has identified as
necessary to deliver both national and local policing priorities.

e The revenue budget provides an estimate of the annual income and expenditure requirements far GMP and sets out
the financial implications of the Commissioner’s policies. It provides Chief Officers with authority to incur expenditure
and a basis on which to monitor the financial performance of the Commissioner.

e The Commissioner is required to set the budget and levy a precept by the end of February prior to the start of the
refevant financial year.

e  Capital expenditure is an important element in the development of the Commissioner’s services since it represents
major investment in new and improved assets. The Commissioner approves the capital programme for each year.

IMPLEMENTING THE PRINCIPLES OF GOOD GOVERNANCE

CORE PRINCIPLE A

BEHAVING WITH INTEGRITY, DEMONSTRATING STRONG COMMITMENT TO ETHICAL VALUES AND RESPECTING THE
RULE OF LAW

The Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner each signed a written undertaking to abide by the code of conduct when
they were appointed.

A code of conduct for the Members of the Joint Audit and Accounts Committee, joint internal audit arrangements,
Human Rescurces Governance Panel and Ethics Committee have also been produced, and each has signed a similar
written undertaking.

The Commissioner, Deputy Commissioner, and members of committees and panels are required to complete a register of
interests form within 28 days of their appointment, and this information is published on the website. The Maonitoring
Officer signed each form and he must be notified of any changes within 28 days.

The Commissioner established an Ethics Committee which reviews and reports on matters concerning ethics in policing.
The Ethics Committee provides advice and challenge in respect of the ethical dilemmas that modern policing may
encounter. The work of the Committee was reported to the Commissioners public forum in March 2017. The report also
set out the Committee’s work programme for the next three years and was jointly agreed by the Chief Constable and the
Commissioner.
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4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

412

4.13

4.14

415

The Commissioner receives regular reports from GMP’s Professional Standards Branch enabling him to have oversight,
and scrutiny of GMP’s complaints process, and to ensure issues of conduct are dealt with appropriately.

The Joint Audit and Accounts Committee has been established to:

oversee the operation and implementation of recommendations made by the internal and external audit providers

e oversee the implementation of the agreed audit plan and to provide the Commissioner and the Chief Constable with
assurance on the effectiveness of the audit function

* scrutinise the statements of accounts and identify any areas of concern to the Commissioner

The Commissioner’s staff are all subject to policies and procedures covering discipline, grievance, standards of conduct
and professional behaviour. Procedures for declaring any gifts and hospitality are included in the code of conduct. The
Commissioner's staff have been asked to declare any business interests and these are included in their personal details.

The Commissioner and the Chief Constable have agreed an Anti-Fraud and Corruption policy and have confidential
integrity reporting {(whistle-blowing) arrangements in place together with a formal protocol between the two parties on
the reporting and investigation of irregularities.

CORE PRINCIPLE B

ENSURING OPENNESS AND COMPREHENSIVE STAKEHOLDER MANAGEMENT

The Commissioner has a statutory responsibility to consult with the public of Greater Manchester on policing issues. To
date, this has been achieved through a variety of methods such as the Commissioner holding public meetings in each local
authority area in Greater Manchester, engaging with the public, victims of crime and partners on the production of the
Police and Crime Plan and the development of the police and crime objectives, as well as the services provided to the
victims of crime. The Commissioner also carries out engagement activity on specific themes liaising with the public,
partners and other key stakeholders.

The Commissioner has held a number of public meetings which have been focused on specific topics, such as the future of
policing and hate crime. Members of the public, victims, and partner agencies have attended these meetings to provide
an insight into their experience, or highlight how their service operates.

The Commissioner has developed a communications and engagement strategy to ensure effective engagement with all
sections of the community and stakeholders. This strategy will help to inform the public of the role of the Commissioner
and his activities.

Delivering high quality policing services is a key objective of the Commissioner’s Police and Crime Plan. Working with local
people and partners, the Commissioner is providing the challenge and scrutiny to encourage service improvement.

The Police and Crime Commissioner works closely with both the Police and Crime Panel and the Police and Crime Steering
Group whose membership includes the Crime and Disorder portfolio holders from the ten local authorities and also two
independent members.

The Commissioner, in setting his precept for the 2016-17 budget, took account of the views from the public and
businesses through online consultation.

CORE PRINCIPLE C

DEFINING OUTCOMES IN TERMS OF SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC, SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL BENEFITS

The Commissioner aims to support the Chief Constable to deliver his and their vision in a way that provides value for
money to people, and see GMP continuously improving their services and how they are provided.
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4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20
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4.22

4.23

4.24

The Commissioner is required t¢ publish a Police and Crime Plan, which sets out his local policing priorities in the form of
police and crime objectives, and specifies the resources the Commissioner will provide to the Chief Canstable. The Police
and Crime Plan is produced in consultation with GMP taking into consideration any objectives set by the Government
{including the Strategic Policing Requirement), and the views of the public and partners. The current published plan
covers the period 2014-2017, and the plan has been refreshed to cover the period May 2016 to December 2017, at which
point the plan will become the responsibility of the Mayor under Greater Manchester Devolution.

The Commissioner works closely with GMP to determine the police and crime objectives which focus their direction and
align GMP's work to ensure services are delivered effectively. This is determined through the production of the Police and
Crime Plan. In determining his plan, the Commissioner and GMP needed to identify and take into account those issues
and factors which would substantially affect it. Feedback from community engagement and consultation activities was
captured during the formalised planning process to help inform the contents of the plan.

Many sources of information were taken into account to determine the priorities within the current Police and Crime Plan
for 2014-2017. These included the strategic policing requirement set out at national level, issues identified through
strategic threat assessments, and the performance picture in Greater Manchester. The development process for the plan
included extensive consultation with key partners, including the Association of Greater Manchester Authorities (AGMA),
Community Safety Partnerships, and the Police and Crime Panel.

Most importantly, residents of Greater Manchester provided the Commissioner with their priorities through various
consultations. This ensures that the police and crime objectives reflect the issues of most concern to local communities.

The priorities for GMP in the Police and Crime Plan for 2014-2017 are to:

e tackle anti-social behaviour

put victims at the centre

protecting vulnerable people

dealing with terrorism, serious organised crime and maintaining public safety
investing in and delivering high quality policing services

building and strengthening partnerships

These priorities are supported by a set of challenges and measures, which provide a way of monitoring performance
and ensuring that GMP progresses towards its aim of becoming the most effective police force in the UK. In addition,
the Commissioner undertakes quarterly monitoring against his own business plan.

The Commissioner agreed his budget for 2016-2017 which outlines the vision for neighbourhood based policing which
works in partnership with other agencies to improve services for the communities across Greater Manchester. The
Commissioner reviewed current plans and achievements, in financial terms, and set aspirations for the coming year,
taking account of the likely resources available, identified key priorities and the impact on the Police and Crime Plan. This
process informed the refresh of the Commissioner's commissioning framework, which has secured the delivery of key
priorities over the coming year.

CORE PRINCIPLE D
DETERMINING THE INTERVENTION NECESSARY TO OPTIMISE THE ACHIEVEMENT OF THE INTENDED OUTCOMES

The independent auditors report concluded that, on the basis of the work undertaken, having regard to the guidance on-
the specified criteria issued by the Controller and Auditor General in November 2015, it was satisfied that in all respects
the Police and Crime Commissioner has put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money through economic,
efficient and effective use of its resources for the year ended 31 March 2016.

There is a Procurement Governance Group that meets on a monthly basis and considers all business cases for the
procurement of services and equipment. The group uses the HMIC Value for Money Principles as part of its challenge
process.

The Commissioner makes certain that stakeholder feedback is an integral element of the approach to the commissioning
of services to ensure that the outcomes meet the needs of service users. The findings of a Victim Satisfaction survey
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4.32

4.33

provided clear evidence of desired outcomes needed in the re-shaping of victim services. Similarly, stakeholder
engagement events were critical in the commissioning of a groundbreaking healthcare in custody service which
commenced in February 2017,

The collaborative approach to ensuring the achievement of intended outcomes is extended beyond the commissioning
process through multi-agency governance arrangements. This can be evidenced through the Health and Justice Board
which receives quarterly performance reports on the Healthcare in Custody service and provides appropriate challenge
and strategic direction for the service. Reports to the Board include a register of assessed risks and controls.

The Commissioner has a robust business case and decision making process in place which incorporates appropriate
challenge to approach and finance and identification of risks. In all cases, legal and financial advice is sought prior to
decisions being considered.

CORE PRINCIPLE E

DEVELOPING THE ENTITY'S CAPACITY, INCLUDING THE CAPABILITY OF ITS LEADERSHIP AND THE INDIVIDUALS WITHIN
T

The Commissioner has clearly outlined who is responsible for the discharge of functions, on his behalf, within the Scheme
of Governance, Contract Standing Orders and Financial Regulations. The Commissioner has appointed a Deputy Police and
Crime Commissioner, and has an independent Joint Audit and Accounts Committee, Ethics Committee and a Human
Resources Governance Panel in place, each of which has clear terms of reference.

The Commissioner has his statutory officers in place, all of whom have received details of their responsibilities as outlined
in the Scheme of Governance:

Chief Executive

As outlined in Schedule 1 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the Commissioner must appoint & Chief
Executive. The Chief Executive is the head of paid staff.

The Chief Executive is also appointed as the Monitoring Officer, and has a statutory duty to highlight any proposals,
decisions or omissions by the Commissioner which constitute, have given rise to, or are likely to give rise to either a
breach of the law, a breach of a statutory code, or which constitute maladministration or injustice.

Chief Finance Officer

As outlined in Schedule 1 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the Commissioner must appoint a Chief
Finance Officer. Under Section 113 of the Local Government Finance Act, 1988, the Chief Finance Officer has
responsibility for the administration of financial affairs. The duties of the role takes account of CIPFA guidance.

In addition to those statutory officers appointed by the Commissioner, the Scheme of Governance cutlines the role of the
Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner, the Chief Constable, and also the responsibilities of GMP’s Chief Finance Officer.

Organisational, team and individual level development and training needs for staff were brought together in
Commissioners Workforce Development Plan, which aligned training and development with business priorities and
challenges. In addition, training needs for staff are reviewed and discussed with individual managers during one to one
supervision meetings and ongoing development of skills and competencies is encouraged.

The Commissioner’s office has an appraisal system in place to set objectives and monthly one to ones with line managers
and staff to manage service delivery against key priorities.

The Independent Custody Visitors Scheme and the Appropriate Adults Scheme continues to be delivered across Greater
Manchester, and regular training for the volunteers is provided. It is a statutory requirement for the Commissioner to
ensure proper arrangements are in place for the provision of an Independent Custody Visitors Scheme. Greater
Manchester Directors of Adult's and Children’s social care, commissioners of the Appropriate Adult service have
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developed alternative commissioning arrangements for 2017 onwards for which the Commissioner has ensured quality
and safeguarding are maintained at current levels.

The Commissioner has regular leadership meetings with service heads at which key/emerging issues are discussed,
informed by the Commissioner's business plan and risk register.

The Commissioner recognises the importance of identifying occasions when independent expert advice is needed. Judicial
advice has been sought on lega! matters and expertise in the development of the Commissioner’s Social Value Strategy
are examples.

CORE PRINCIPLE F

MANAGING RISKS AND PERFORMANCE THROUGH ROBUST INTERNAL CONTROL AND STRONG PUBLIC FINANCIAL
MANAGEMENT

The Commissioner has formal and informa! mechanisms for monitoring and scrutinising the performance of GMP. The
Commissioner has a forum meeting every month, at which members of the public are entitled to attend. The agenda for
these meetings are published on the website. In addition, the Commissioner publishes a forward plan which details items
to be included on the agenda for future meetings. Decisions made by the Commissioner, and Deputy Commissioner,
outside the formal meeting process, are also published on the website.

Reports submitted to the Commissioner will include appropriate legal, financial, and other professional advice to enable
this to be considered as part of the decision making process. Areas of potential risk and measures to mitigate identified
risks are also included in the reports.

The Commissioner has established a Joint Audit and Accounts Committee with its responsibilities including reviewing the
provision of an independent assessment on the office’s and GMP’s corporate risk management strategy and providing
assurance that an appropriate, effective framework is in place for assessing and managing the key risks to both
organisations. On appointment all members of the committee received training on their roles and responsibilities.

The Equality Act 2010 required all public bodies to produce information for the public, relating to how the organisation is
complying with the general equality duties. Information relating to equality in the workplace, and the Commissioner's
equality objectives are published on his website.

Updates on performance and progress relating to achieving the objectives set in the Police and Crime Plan are reported to
the Commissioner on a regular basis, at his forum meeting, at which the public are able to attend. Over the course of
2016-17, GMP have refined the way performance is reported to the commissioner to better reflect the position against
strategic plans and priorities.

The Healthcare in Custody contract is a tripartite arrangement between the Commissioner, the Greater Manchester
Health and Social Care Partnership and NHS England. A Memorandum of Understanding has been signed off by each
organisations and sets out their roles and responsibilities in the management of risk and responsibilities.

Strategic multi-agency governance arrangements have been established in order to scrutinise the effectiveness of the
work of partnerships. The Greater Manchester Justice and Rehabilitation Executive is one such example providing
strategic leadership for the whole of the criminal justice system. The Board also acts as a monitoring, policy development
and commissioning body for initiatives which seek to improve outcomes for victims in Greater Manchester aligned to the
Commissioner’s approach to Victim Services Commissioning.

CORE PRINCIPLE G

IMPLEMENTING GOOD PRACTICES IN TRANSPARENCY, REPORTING AND AUDIT TO DELIVER EFFECTIVE
ACCOUNTABILITY

The Police and Crime Commissioner’s formal business is conducted at a number of meetings. In the interests of openness
and transparency, the Police and Crime Commissioner opens meetings up to the public where possible.
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A forward plan has been produced that sets out the key decisions which are due to be made by the Police and Crime
Commissioner, and decisions to be made by Chief Officers. Those Chief Officers are the Chief Executive, Chief Finance
Officer and/or Chief Constable. The forward plan is updated on a regular basis.

The Commissioner has also established a number of independently chaired committees. The Ethics Committee, Protest
Panel and the Joint Audit and Accounts Committee. Led by the chair, each has independent membership and terms of
reference which are periodically reviewed. The independence ensures sufficient and appropriate challenge on a range of
palicing and ethical matters and report directly to the commissioner. Minutes of the meetings are publicly available
through the Commissioners website,

The Commissioner publishes an Annual report as part of the precept setting process. The report is publicly available sets
out the work that has taken place in the preceding year alongside forthcoming priorities.

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

The Commissioner has responsibility for conducting a review of the effectiveness of the governance framework including:

o The effectiveness of Internal Audit
s  The system of internal control

As required by the Public Sector internal Audit Standards, a review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit is conducted on
behalf of the Chief Finance Officer and will be submitted to the Audit and Accounts Committee, Regular monitoring
reports and an annual report is received from the Chief Finance Officer.

The review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the internal auditors and the
senior managers within the Commissioner’s office and GMP who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control environment.

Audit and inspection actions arising from all the audit and inspection activities are reported to the Commissioner and
Members of the Audit and Accounts Committee and appropriate action is taken to address actions arising from these
reports.

Her Majesty’s Inspector of Constabulary (HMIC)

Whilst the Police and Crime Commissioner is not formally inspected by Her Majesty’s Inspector of Constabulary (HMIC),
he has a duty to respand to the Home Secretary in relation to relevant inspection findings within 30 working days of the
repart being issued. These responses are published. The Commissioner is therefore made aware of inspections and visits
which have been made to GMP during 2016-2017, and those planned for 2017-2018. The Commissioner scrutinises GMP's
response to HMIC recommendations and calls for regular progress reports to be presented at his Forum.

internal Audit

Internal Audit is an assurance function that provides an independent and objective opinion to the organisation on the
control environment by evaluating its effectiveness in achieving the organisation’s objectives. Internal Audit work to a
code of practice and prepares a plan of activities that is submitted to the Commissioner for approval. The focus is to
examine, evaluate and report on the adequacy of systems of internal control as a contribution to the proper, economic,
efficient and effective use of resources.

Although the responsibility for maintaining and reviewing the systems of internal control rests with the Commissioner, he
takes significant assurance from the work of internal audit. In fulfilling this responsibility each year the Commissioner will
receive an Annual Report on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of its internal control environment. In 2014/15 the
report concluded that the Commissioner’s systems of internal control were considered to be good.

External Audit

The external auditor’s annual audit letter for 2015 - 2016 reported that in all significant respects, the Police and Crime
Commissioner has put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money through economic, efficient and effective
use of its resources for the year ended 31 March 2016.
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5.10

Review of progress 2016-17

Areas for development 2016-17

Progress at April 2017

Commissioning Framework and Grant
Arrangements

A review of the Commissioning framework
and grant award process will be undertaken

The Commissioning framework for 2017/18 has been updated
and approved

A review of the grant awards process was completed and further
improvements made to strengthen the control environment. This
has now been incorporated as business as usual.

Cyber security

A mapping exercise will be undertaken in
relation to the various assurances provided
from adhoc audit from the previous 12
months in relation to Cyber Security in order
to identify any gaps and possible areas for
Audit review

To be undertaken in 2017/18 as part of the IT audit plan

Value for Money (VFM] Review

A review of the PCCs processes and working
practices will be carried out in 2016/17. To
ensure that they are being carried out in the
most economic, efficient and effective way.

Review of the complaints process and Business support
completed and reported within the internal audit annual report.

Governance

Governance arrangements for the PCCs office
specifically will be reviewed further during
2016/17 to ensure they are fit for purpose
and provide value

The Independent auditors report concluded that, on the basis of
the work undertaken, having regard to the guidance on the
specified criteria issued by the Controller and Auditor General in
November 2015, it was satisfied that in all respects the Police
and Crime Commissioner has put in place proper arrangements
to secure value for money through economic, efficient and
effective use of its resources for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Good Governance Standards

The Police and Crime Commissioners
governance arrangements will be
benchmarked against the revised CIPFA Good
Governance standards for local government,

and associated guidance.

The CIPFA Good Governance standards for local government,
and associated guidance has been used in the preparation of the
Annual Governance statement for 2016/17

It is acknowledged that further progress needs to be made in 2017/18 and the Commissioner has identified the following

areas:

Development Area for 2017-18

Action for 2017-18

Business Continuity

In the transition to the combined authority the business
continuity plan for the function of Police, Crime, Criminal Justice
and Fire will be reviewed and updated. This will be informed by a
refreshed risk register.

Audit function

Collaborative peer review will be undertaken and reported to the
Joint Audit and Accounts committee

Review of governance (CA}

The current OPCC Scheme of Governance has been reviewed and
is considered fit for purpose. 1n light of forthcoming statutory
transfer of the PCC function to the Greater Manchester
Combined Authority it is recommended that the current scheme
of governance remains in place and a full review is undertaken

Police and Crime Commissioner for Greater Manchester
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7.2

7.3

following transfer which can take account of the broader
Combined Authority functions.

To contribute to the refresh of the GMCAs Code of Corporate
Governance to reflect the powers of the new Mayoral GMCA

Code of Conduct Annual sign off by staff
GMCA approach to risk and assurance To develop a shared and consistent approach to the co-

ordination of risk and assurance across the Combined Authority.

To develop a consistent and co-ordinated approach to counter
fraud and whistle blowing arrangements.

Cyber Security To be scaped for inclusion in 2017/18 audit plan

Assurance Summary

No system of internal control can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss; this statement is
intended to provide reasonable assurance. However, on the basis of the review of the sources of assurance set out in this
statement, we are satisfied that the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner have in place satisfactory systems of
internal control which facilitate the effective exercise of their functions.

Events post balance sheet which impact on Governance

The events of 22 May 2017 were unprecedented in Manchester with emergency responders and the community
mounting their biggest ever response to a terrorist attack. Manchester has had first-hand experience of terrorist
bombings, with the IRA bomb of 1996 still fresh in many minds. However, whilst the 1996 event caused extensive
damage to the city centre, the Manchester Arena Terrorist Attack caused irreparable loss of life, many being young
people enjoying a night out at a concert. Despite the atrocity which unfolded, the response to this event by hoth
responders and the wider community has been astounding and has shown the strength and resilience of the city region,

The Mayor of Greater Manchester in his role as the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) is commissioning an
Independent Review of the events and aftermath of the Manchester Arena Terrorist Attack.

This Independent Review is tasked with identifying the elements of the preparation and response that have worked well,
as well as quickly identifying where improvements can be made. This will help responders be better prepared in the
future and protect the lives of Greater Manchester’s residents and visitors in the months and years to come. Wider
sharing of this learning will be important for similar reasons. The review will be part of an ongoing process and any

recommendations that are made will be followed up so that any lessons identified are not lost.

¢ 2

Baroness Beverley
Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime
Greater Manchester Combined Authority

Date: 29*" September 2017
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Monitoring Officer Assurance Statement 2016/17

The Commissioner is responsible for ensuring that the business of his office is conducted in accordance with the law and proper
standards, and that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. In
discharging this overall responsibility, the Commissioner is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the
governance of the affairs of his office, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the
management of risk.

As Monitoring Officer, | have responsibility for maintaining 2 system of sound internal contre! and risk management processes
that supports proper governance in order to achieve the Commissioner’s objectives, and for reviewing the effectiveness of his
office.

The Commissioner’s Annual Governance Statement is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
these objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.

My review of the effectiveness of Governance has taken into account the following: -

. Adequacy and effectiveness of management review processes

. Outcomes from the formal risk assessment and evaluation

. Relevant internal audit reports and results of follow ups regarding implementation of recommendations
. Outcomes from reviews of services by other bedies including Inspectorates, external auditors etc.

I certify that | am confident that systems of internal control as a part of proper governance arrangements exist within my area of
responsibility, which enables the Commissioner’s objectives to be met. A sound system of internal control has been in place
throughout the period of account and remains so.

Signed: /%

£amonn Boylan
Chief Executive of Greater Manchester Combined Authority

Date: 29' September 2017
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Chief Finance Officer’s Assurance Statement 2016/17

The Commissioner is responsible for ensuring that the business of his office is conducted in accordance with the law and proper
standards, and that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. In
discharging this overall responsibility, the Commissioner is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the
governance of the affairs of his office, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the
management of risk.

As the Combined Authority’s Section 73 Officer | have responsibility for the proper administration of the financial affairs of his
office that feed directly into the Annual Governance Statement. | am charged with ensuring that financial management
arrangements are sound and effective, including a system of sound internal control and relevant risk management processes that
support proper governance in order to achieve the corporate objectives, and for reviewing their effectiveness.

The Annual Governance Statement is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve these objectives; it
can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.

This Assurance Statement is intended to complement the assurance statement provided by the Monitoring Officer, and together
with this statement provide an underlying layer of assurance that supports the Commissioner’s Annual Governance Statement.

My review of the effectiveness of governance has taken into account the following: -

=  Relevant internal audit reports and results of follow ups regarding implementation of recommendations.

= Advising on corporate risk profiling and management, including safeguarding assets, risk avoidance and insurance.

= Ensuring there is an effective system of internal financial control.

=  Ensuring a prudent financial framework is in place.

= Ensuring that any partnership arrangements {or other innovative structures for service delivery) are underpinned by
clear and well-documented internal financial controls.

= Securing effective arrangements for prudent borrowing, including ensuring compliance with the relevant codes for
Treasury Management.

=  Ensuring there is an effective internal audit function and assisting management in providing effective arrangements for
financial scrutiny.

= Advising on anti-fraud and anti-corruption strategies and measures.

=  Ensuring that effective whistle-blowing policies are implemented.

= Securing effective systems of financial administration.

=  Ensuring that statutory and other accounts present fairly the financial position and transactions of the Commissioner.

| certify that | am confident that relevant systems of internal control, as a part of proper governance arrangements, exist across
the Commissioner’s office, which enables the Commissioner’s objectives to be met. A sound system of internal control has been
in place throughout the period of account and remains so.

Signed:

Lot

Date: 29th September 2017

Name : Richard Paver
Treasurer of GMCA
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